AGENDA
MEETING VENUE:
Council Chamber Council Offices,
Priory Road, Spalding

Contact:
Direct Dial:
e-mail:

Lynn Eldred
01775 764626
leldred@sholland.gov.uk

Date:

29 November 2016

Dear Councillor,
A meeting of the DISTRICT COUNCIL will be held in Council Chamber, Council Offices,
Priory Road, Spalding on Wednesday, 7 December 2016, commencing at 6.30 pm at
which your attendance is requested.
Yours faithfully,

Anna Graves
Chief Executive
AGENDA
1.

Apologies for absence

2.

Minutes
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 26
October 2016 (copy enclosed).

3.

Declaration of Interests
(Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item,
except where a Councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of
dispensation.)

4.

Chairman's Announcements

5.

Announcements by Leader and Members of the Cabinet

6.

Questions asked on notice under Standing Order 6

7.

Questions asked without notice under Standing Order 7

(Pages
1 - 12)

8.

Committee Minutes
To receive the minutes of the following Committees and Panels:a)

Committee of the Licensing Authority - 18 October 2016

b)

Licensing Committee - 18 October 2016

c)
d)

Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development
Panel - 25 October 2016 (see also exempt minute at agenda item
16)
Policy Development Panel - 1 November 2016

e)

Planning Committee - 2 November 2016

f)

Performance Monitoring Panel - 8 November 2016

(Pages
13 - 22)
(Pages
23 - 26)
(Pages
27 - 30)
(Pages
31 - 36)
(Pages
37 - 44)
(Pages
45 - 54)
(Pages
55 - 72)

9.

Report from Cabinet meeting held on 8 November 2016
To consider any recommendations of the Cabinet affecting the budget
and policy framework (Report of the Cabinet is enclosed; please see
also exempt information at agenda items 16 and 17).

10.

Key Decision Plan
To receive the current Key Decision Plan (copy enclosed).

(Pages
73 - 76)

11.

Staffing Structure - Emergency Planning and Property Services
To consider proposed changes to the staffing structure (report of the
Portfolio Holder for Place and the Head of Paid Service is enclosed).

(Pages
77 - 82)

12.

Nominations for Committees and other Seats and Proposed Changes to
the Constitution.
To receive, from political groups, nominations for any changes to
Committees and other seats and to consider any proposed changes to
the Constitution.

13.

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent NOTE:

No other business is permitted unless by reason of special
circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the
Chairman is of the opinion that the items(s) should be
considered as a matter of urgency.

14.

Exclusion of the Press and Public
To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the
meeting on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraphs 3 and 5 of Schedule 12 (A) of the
Act.

15.

Joint Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy Development Panel
meeting - 25 October 2016
Exempt minutes are enclosed.

(Pages
83 - 88)

16.

UK Municipal Bond Agency
Appendix is enclosed (please see agenda item 9).

17.

ICT Service and Infrastructure
Report is enclosed (please see agenda item 9).

(Pages
89 274)
(Pages
275 332)

This page is intentionally left blank

- 29 -

Agenda Item 2.

Minutes of a meeting of the SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL held in the
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 26
October 2016 at 6.30 pm.
PRESENT
M D Seymour (Chairman)
R Grocock (Vice-Chairman)
B Alcock
G R Aley
D Ashby
J R Astill
F Biggadike
M D Booth
C J T H Brewis
P E Coupland
G J Taylor
T A Carter
A Casson

M G Chandler
R Clark
G K Dark
H Drury
L J Eldridge
P C Foyster
R Gambba-Jones
A Harrison
C N Johnson
C J Lawton
J D McLean

A M Newton
G A Porter
M J Pullen
J L Reynolds
S-A Slade
E J Sneath
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
A R Woolf
C N Worth

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors J Avery,
J L King and P A Williams,
In Attendance: Executive Director – Place, Interim Section 151 Officer, Independent
Advisor, Executive Manager – Growth and Prosperity, Executive Manager –
Governance and Democratic Services Manager.
Action By

48.

MINUTE SILENCE IN REMEMBRANCE OF MR STEVE
MORRIS
The Chairman led a minute’s silence to mark the recent death of
Steve Morris who had previously served as Vice-Chairman on the
District Council’s Standards Committee.

49.

MINUTES
Councillors considered the minutes of the meeting held on 14th
September 2016.
DECISION:
That the minutes be agreed as a correct record and be signed by
the Chairman.

50.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
There were no declarations of interest.

Page 1

- 30 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 26 October 2016
51.

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS.
The Chairman thanked Annette Faulkner and Diane Fenton
Fairchild for their contribution towards the recent ‘In Bloom’
success and presented them with a cyrstal bowl for their
achievement.

52.

ANNOUNCEMENTS BY LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE
CABINET.
The Leader advised of his recent appointment to United Cities
and Local Government (UCLG).
Councillor Lawton advised that at the last meeting of Council a
visit to the new Gypsy and Travellers site was requested by
Councillor Alcock. A small group of Councillors had visited the
site which was functional and had been delivered without
excessive expenditure.

53.

QUESTIONS ASKED ON NOTICE UNDER STANDING ORDER
6
There were no questions asked under Standing Order 6.

54.

QUESTIONS ASKED WITHOUT NOTICE UNDER STANDING
ORDER 7
Question to:
Question from:
Subject:

Councillor Gambba-Jones
Councillor Newton
Update on Garden Waste pilot

Councillor Newton asked for an update on the Garden Waste
pilot.
Councillor Gambba-Jones advised that to date the scheme had
been a resounding success and there would be further details in
due course. The big challenge was where to go next whilst
continuing to ensure value for money and looking at resources
already in use. It was important not to rush into anything and he
reminded members that this was a two year pilot. Councillor
Gambba-Jones thanked the team for their efforts and advised that
there would be a full detailed report in due course.
Question to:
Question from:
Subject:

Councillor Lawton
Councillor Alcock
Housing Need

Councillor Alcock advised that the housing revenue account was

Page 2

- 31 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 26 October 2016

in desperate need of more houses and asked what progress the
authority was making as he had spoken to local developers who
were getting mixed messages and didn’t seem to know the
authority’s plans.
Councillor Lawton advised that the authority was currently in the
process of co-ordinating with developers to see how best to bring
forward new housing. The authority was continuing to work to
encourage new developments.
55.

COMMITTEE MINUTES
Performance Monitoring Panel – 30 August 2016
DECISION:
That the minutes be received.
Planning Committee – 31 August 2016
DECISION:
That the minutes be received.
Governance and Audit Committee – 15 September 2016
DECISION:
That the minutes be received.
Planning Committee – 28 September 2016
DECISION:
That the minutes be received.

56.

KEY DECISION PLAN
Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan.
DECISION:
That the Key Decision Plan be received.

57.

GREATER LINCOLNSHIRE DEVOLUTION PROPOSAL
The Council considered a report which set out the latest position
in relation to the implementation of the devolution agreement for

Page 3

- 32 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 26 October 2016

Greater Lincolnshire.
Councillors recalled that on the 11th May 2016 Council received
the results of a Governance Review under section 108 of the
Local Democracy Economic Development and Construction Act
2009. On 24 June 2016 the Leader of the Council considered the
results of the Review. On the basis of that Review the Council
supported, and the Leader approved, the preparation and
publication of a Scheme for consultation under section 109 of the
Act.
The report provided confirmation on the outcome of the
consultation exercise undertaken by the ten local authorities in the
Greater Lincolnshire area and sought to determine whether the
Council supported the giving of consent on behalf of South
Holland District Council to the creation of a Combined Authority in
Greater Lincolnshire and if so the basis on which to do so.
The Portfolio Holder for Strategy, Governance and
Transformation spoke on the report and advised that through a
combined authority board consisting of the Leaders as
representatives of the constituent councils, the director or
representative of the GLEP representing the business community
and headed up by an independently elected Chair would develop
growth across the whole of the county.
The final decision to proceed rested with the Leader of the council
and the recommendations within the report. Recommendation
three gave assurance that this would finally be made when the full
details of the Order were known and deemed satisfactory.
The Portfolio Holder for Strategy, Governance and
Transformation advised that he believed this represented an
excellent opportunity for greater Lincolnshire as a whole and for
South Holland. It was the first step towards a number of new
powers that otherwise would not be available to the county and
the ten local authorities within Lincolnshire.
He fully supported the recommendations and proposed that
council accepted and approved them. He stated that seven of the
ten councils were already willing to be included in a devolution
deal for Greater Lincolnshire and the authority’s aim should be to
secure the best opportunity for South Holland. Devolution would
give powers to exercise locally a number of functions currently
exercised by the Secretary of State or other public authorities on
behalf of central government.

Page 4

- 33 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 26 October 2016

The objective was to provide accelerated growth across the whole
of Lincolnshire with more decisions about spending on some
public services being made locally rather than nationally.
Councillors were informed of the expected benefits from
devolution and that there would be new powers funding and
responsibilities that would provide additional investment for
housing and infrastructure. Those powers were in addition to the
services already provided by councils to accelerate the delivery of
the strategic economic plan which aimed to increase the value of
greater Lincolnshire economy by over £8billion creating more than
29,000 new jobs and delivering at least 100,000 new homes. He
added that it also represented an opportunity to build on key
sectors such as agriculture and food, energy, manufacturing,
visitor economy and 16+ and 19+ education and skills.
The Leader of the Council reminded members that the Council
had supported the deal throughout. He urged the Council to
support the proposals again and undertook to bring them back to
Council should the Final Order not deliver what members
expected.
Members noted that two of the Councils had not supported the
proposals – although the leaders of those two Councils had yet to
make the final decision.
Members agreed that there were risks involved but the risks of not
being involved in the deal were greater.
Thanks were given to Councillor Chandler and the officers
involved for keeping everyone up to date with information through
regular briefings.
In accordance with Standing Order number 16 a recorded vote
was requested and supported by twelve other members of
Council, as follows:
Name
Alcock B

For


Aley G R



Ashby D



Astill J R



Avery J E

Apologies

Against

Abstain

Apologies

Apologies

Page 5

- 34 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 26 October 2016



Biggadike F
Booth M D



Brewis C J T H



Carter T A



Casson A



Chandler M G




Clark R
Coupland P E



Dark G K



Drury H T



Eldridge L J




Foyster P C
Gambba-Jones R



Grocock R



Harrison A



Johnson C N



King J

Apologies

Lawton C J



McLean J D



Newton A M



Porter G A



Pullen M J



Reynolds J L



Seymour M D



Slade S



Apologies

Page 6

Apologies

- 35 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 26 October 2016

Sneath E



Taylor G J



Tennant A C



Tyrrell J



Williams P A

Apologies

Woolf A R



Worth C N



TOTAL

Apologies

Apologies

3

0

31

DECISION:
That the Council: 1

Notes the contents of the consultation report at Appendix
1 ("the Consultation Report").

2

Supports the giving of consent on behalf of South Holland
District Council, as a constituent council of the proposed
combined authority for the Greater Lincolnshire area, to
the making by the Secretary of State of an order: (a) for the establishment of a combined authority for the
Greater Lincolnshire area pursuant to section 110 of
the Local Democracy, Economic Development and
Construction Act 2009 (LDEDCA).
(b) for the making of constitutional provisions in relation to
the Combined Authority pursuant to section 104 of
LDEDCA.
(c) for the delegation to the Combined Authority of the
transport functions of the Secretary of State and the
other functions of public authorities pursuant to
sections 104 and 105A of LDEDCA.
(d) for the functions of the Mayoral Combined Authority
specified in the Order to be exercisable only by the
mayor subject to the conditions and limitations
specified in the Order pursuant to S107D of LDEDCA.
(e) for Chapter 1 Part 1 of the Localism Act 2011 to have
effect in relation to the combined authority as it has in
effect to a local authority.
(f) for the combined authority to be treated as a levying

Page 7

- 36 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 26 October 2016

body for the purposes of section 74 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1988 in respect of the
expenses of the combined authority that are
reasonably attributable to the exercise of any of its
functions other than the mayoral functions.
(g) for the combined authority to be given power to borrow
under section 1 of the Local Government Act 2003 for
a purpose relevant to any of its functions

58.

3

Supports delegating to the Chief Executive, in consultation
with the Leader of the Council, authority to approve the
giving of consent to the matters referred to in paragraph 2
of the report when the terms of the Order are known

4

Notes and has due regard to the content of the Equalities
Impact Analysis at Appendix 2 of the report.

5

Notes that the Council’s 2017/18 Budget to be considered
by Council on 16th February 2017, will contain a proposal
for provision of an anticipated contribution to the Mayoral
Combined Authority of a maximum £50,000 per annum and
another to provide additional management arrangements
and staffing to ensure that the Council plays a full part in
activities relating to the Greater Lincolnshire Mayoral
Combined Authority.

GREATER LINCOLNSHIRE LOCAL ENTERPRISE GROWTH
AND EFFICIENCY PROGRAMME (GL-LEGE)
(GRANTS4GROWTH2)
Councillors noted that in November 2015, South Holland District
Council submitted a bid to DCLG for the Greater Lincolnshire
Local Enterprise Growth and Efficiency Programme, GL-LEGE,
also known as Grants4growth2, under Priority Axis 3, Enhancing
the Competitiveness of Small and Medium sized Enterprises
(SME’s).
This application followed on from the completion of the original
East Midlands Local Enterprise Growth and Efficiency
Programme, EM-LEGE, also known as Grants4growth, a £1.1m
ERDF funded project providing capital grants to businesses as a
catalyst for investment by small and medium sized enterprises to
purchase/install efficient new processes, production facilities, and
clean tech/ efficiency equipment, helping them invest to grow.
The proposed new programme which was the subject of the
report was an innovative package of grant based support centred
on the administration and distribution of capital grants as a

Page 8

- 37 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 26 October 2016

catalyst for investment by SME’s. Delivery would be focussed on
the geographical area covered by the Greater Lincolnshire Local
Enterprise Partnership.
GL-LEGE would be marketed under the well-established and well
regarded Grants4growth brand and will be embedded in the
LEP’s Growth Hub, a suite of support services sitting within the
Business Lincolnshire offer.
The programme would be contracted to support at least 210
SME’s from across Greater Lincolnshire, aiming to work with a
diverse group of small businesses in terms of size, sector,
geographic location and ownership. It was anticipated the
programme would deliver a range of measurable outcomes and
results including the creation of new jobs, securing private
investment by SME’s; cost savings and efficiency gains; jobs
safeguarded, CO2 emission reductions and the adoption of new
processes.

NB

DECISION:
That subject to the satisfactory completion of all necessary legal,
and contractual due diligence, any negotiation with the funding
body that arises from that process, and being satisfied that the
project remains in the best interests of the Council and Greater
Lincolnshire area the Chief Executive be given delegated
authority to sign the contract for the GL-LEGE project.
59.

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REVIEW 2015/16
It was noted that the Council was required by regulations issued
under the Local Government Act 2003 to produce an annual
treasury management review of activities and the actual
prudential and treasury indicators for 2015/16. The report met the
requirements of both the CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury
Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for
Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).
DECISION:

KT

That the Council receives and approves the Annual Treasury
Management Review 2014/15 as required by the Local
Government Act 2003.
60.

APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITORS
It was noted that the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (the
Act) introduced the necessity for Local Authorities to establish an

Page 9

- 38 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 26 October 2016

auditor panel and manage their own procurement. The council
could appoint auditors directly but this was not recommended as it
would be costly to run our own procurement exercise, and being
an individual Authority we would be unlikely to benefit from
economies of scale and achieve a competitive price.
Auditors could be appointed in conjunction with other local
authorities. This was initially explored with Lincolnshire County
Council leading on a potential County wide procurement exercise.
However again this was not recommended as it would incur
procurement costs for the authorities involved and would also
mean each Authority would then need to manage and monitor the
performance of the contract that was entered into.
To avoid prohibitive costs and ensure a sound contractual
framework was in place for assessment of Auditors, the Council
was recommended to join the National scheme subject to the
applicable terms and conditions being acceptable to the Council KT
and within the constitution.
DECISION:
1) That the Council agrees to join a national collective scheme,
led by the Public Sector Audit Appointments (PSAA).
2) That delegated authority be given to the Section 151 officer (or
deputy in their absence) to communicate the willingness of
the council to join the scheme, led by PSAA and to enter into
the scheme after a satisfactory examination / negotiation of
the proposed terms & conditions is concluded.
61.

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16
Councillors considered the Governance and Audit annual Report
2015-2016.
DECISION:
CM

That the Governance and Audit Annual Report 2015-16 be
received.
62.

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16
Councillors considered the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report
2015-16.

CM

Page 10

- 39 SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 26 October 2016

DECISION:
That the Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2015-16 be
received.
63.

NOMINATIONS FOR COMMITTEES AND OTHER SEATS AND
PROPOSED CHANGES TO THE CONSTITUTION.
No nominations were received.

64.

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE
URGENT
There were no urgent items.

65.

EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
DECISION:
That, under section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the press and public be excluded from the meeting on the
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph 4 of Schedule 12(A) of the
Act.

66.

DEMOCRATIC SERVICES REVIEW
The Executive Manager Governance introduced the report which
related to the staffing structure of the Democratic Services Team
which had been reviewed as part of the organisational design
strand of the Transformation Programme.
The report sought approval to a proposed structure that would be
fit for purpose in a modern local authority. In addition to a revised
staffing structure various service improvements and cost savings
would be implemented.
MS

DECISION:
That Council approve the revised staffing structure for the
Democratic Services Team as detailed in the report and
authorises officers to proceed with implementing the new
structure.
(The meeting ended at 8.20 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

-9-

Agenda Item 8.a)

Minutes of a meeting of the COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING AUTHORITY held in
the Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 18
October 2016 at 6.35 pm.
PRESENT
A Harrison (Chairman)
T A Carter (Vice-Chairman)
G R Aley
A Casson
M G Chandler
G K Dark

J L King
C J Lawton
A M Newton
M J Pullen

E J Sneath
J Tyrrell

In Attendance: Councillors , Democratic Services Support Officer, Licensing and
Business Support Manager, Assistant Licensing Officer and Communications Officer
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors M D Booth,
R Clark and H Drury
8.

CUMULATIVE IMPACT REVIEW WORK
The Chairman agreed to consider the item 5 of the agenda, regarding Cumulative
Impact Review Work, immediately after apologies for absence. This was due to the
attendance of Daven Naghen (Maples Solicitors, Spalding) who was present at the
meeting to provide any legal advice of matters being considered in relation to
Cumulative Impact.
The Licensing and Business Support Manager, Donna presented to the Committee
the report of the Executive Manager People and Public Protection, relating to
Cumulative Impact Review Work. In addition to the report Donna provided the
Committee with maps of the Spalding Town Centre, which indicated Licensing
Premises and their locations.
Cumulative impact was relevant where there is a potential impact on the promotion of
the licensing objectives of a significant number of licensed premises that are
concentrated in one area. The four licensing objectives were:
:

The prevention of crime and disorder;

Public safety;

The prevention of public nuisance; and

The protection of children from harm.
After consultation, a licensing authority could include a cumulative impact policy (CIP)
within the statement of licensing policy. The effect of this was to create a rebuttable
presumption that applications for premises licences which were likely to add to the
existing cumulative impact would normally be refused or subject to certain limitations
unless the applicant could demonstrate that there would be no negative impact on
the licensing objectives.

Page 13

- 10 COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING
AUTHORITY - 18 October 2016

Each application was still to be considered properly and on its own merit, and
applications that were unlikely to add to the cumulative impact on the licensing
objectives should be granted. If no relevant representations were received then the
licensing authority must grant the licence regardless of whether a CIP was in place.
Home Office guidance summarised the following steps that should be followed in
considering whether to adopt a CIP:






Identify concern and consider whether there is good evidence that crime and
disorder or nuisance are occurring, or whether there are activities which pose a
threat to public safety or the protection of children from harm. If these problems
are occurring, identify whether they are being caused by the customers of
licensed premises;
Identify the boundaries of the area where problems are occurring ;
Consult specified persons as identified in the 2003 Act;
Subject to the outcome of the consultation include details of the CIP in the
licensing policy statement.

A review was undertaken in 2013 to decide whether a cumulative impact policy was
needed to tackle perceived problems with the off licence trade in Spalding. Evidence
was analysed by the police relating to the number of off licences in the area and
alcohol related antisocial behaviour incidents from 2008 to 2012. An independent
analysis of the evidence was also undertaken by a national licensing law firm. At that
time it was concluded that there was insufficient evidence to show a clear link
between alcohol related antisocial behaviour and the number of off-licensed
premises.
Following on from that a number of other initiatives were introduced with partners to
tackle the root cause of problems in that area. These included; Safer Spalding
Scheme, Operation Trunk and the Street Pastors. A Designated Public Place Order
(DPPO) was in place in the town centre to tackle the problem of street drinking. In
addition to this work the Licensing Team were now working with the Communities
Team and the Police to introduce a Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) to replace
the DPPO, and as an additional means to control antisocial behaviour in the town
centre.
The Home Office had recently tabled an amendment to the Policing and Crime Bill
proposing to place CIPs on a statutory footing. The aim of this was to add legal
certainty and transparency for applicants, licensing authorities and other responsible
authorities, on how CIPs were developed and operated. The legislation would not
require all licensing authorities to consider introducing a CIP. It laid out the steps a
licensing authority would be required to take before publishing a cumulative impact
assessment. Statutory guidance would set out the kinds of evidence licensing
authorities may use and the consultation process. For example: Why was it
considering a cumulative impact assessment; the areas which the assessment
related to; and whether the assessment would relate to all premises licences and
club premises or only those of a particular kind.

Page 14

- 11 COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING
AUTHORITY - 18 October 2016

There would be a further requirement that the licensing authority carried out a
consultation on the CIP at least every 3 years and published a statement about
whether the licensing authority remained of the opinion set out in the original
assessment. The aim of this was to ensure that licensing authorities used robust and
up to date evidence to support the implementation and retention of CIPS in their
area.
Enquiries had been made by the licensing team to identify information available that
would be relevant to a cumulative impact review. The information below was obtained
from SHDC Environmental Protection team in relation to nuisance complaints which
were linked by the complainant to licensed premises.
Table 1 - Environmental Protection nuisance complaints received for licensed
premises Aug 2013 to Sept 2016:
Time Period

Nature of complaint

August 2013 to
August 2014

Noise from pub
Noise from pub
Noise from pub (music)
Noise from takeaway
(building works)
Noise from pub (music)
Noise from restaurant (music
and fighting)

August 2014 to
August 2015

August 2015 to
September
2016

Location of licensed
premise to which
complaint relates
Sutton Bridge
Spalding town centre
Tydd St Mary
Spalding town centre
Pinchbeck
Sutton Bridge

TOTAL 6
Noise from event
Noise from event
Noise from pub (music)
Noise from pub (music)
Noise from pub (music)
Noise from pub (music)
Noise from event
Noise nuisance (alarm)
Noise from pub (music)
Noise from event
Noise from club premises

Gedney
Moulton
Spalding town centre
Spalding town centre
Spalding town centre
Pinchbeck
Long Sutton
Whaplode
Gedney Dyke
Sutton St Edmund
Spalding

TOTAL 11
Noise from pub
Noise from
equipment/takeaway
Noise from pub (music)
Noise from pub
Noise from café
Noise from pub

Crowland
Outskirts Spalding
Spalding town centre
Sutton Bridge
Spalding town centre
Crowland
Spalding town centre

Page 15

- 12 COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING
AUTHORITY - 18 October 2016

Noise from pub (music)
Noise from café
Noise from pub (music)
Noise from pub (music)
Noise from pub (equipment)
Noise from pub (music)

Spalding town centre
Sutton Bridge
Sutton Bridge
Sutton Bridge
Spalding town centre

TOTAL 12
The data showed an increase in noise nuisance complaints relating to licensed
premises in South Holland since 2013, although the numbers remained low. The
data related to complaints made to the council, not every complaint had been
substantiated.
Lincolnshire Police and SHDC Communities Team had also been asked to contribute
to this review. The information related to the NC27 policing area which was primarily
Spalding Town Centre.
Table 2 - Information provided by Communities Team for Alcohol Related Anti
Social Behaviour incidents April to July 2014 to 2016:

Drunken
Behavio
ur
Total
Street
Drinking
Total

Ap
r
10
Ap
r
5

2014
Ma Ju
y
n
13 9
53
Ma Ju
y
n
8
9
29

Jul
y
21

Ap
r
12

Jul
y
7

Ap
r
4

2015
Ma Ju
y
n
8
11
38
Ma Ju
y
n
7
2
18

Jul
y
7

Ap
r
8

Jul
y
5

Ap
r
0

2016
Ma Ju
y
n
9
7
32
Ma Ju
y
n
4
4
10

Jul
y
8
Jul
y
2

The recorded incidents for drunken behaviour included drunken behaviour outside
pubs and clubs, domestic premises and in the street but did not necessarily equate to
street drinking incidents. A maximum of 10 incidents were purported to relate to
street drinking. Those 10 incidents that were reported to the Police in April to July
2016 related to various locations including Aldi car park, Gore Lane, Swan Street,
Victoria car park, Hall Place and the Sheep Market.
The Committee considered the information and the following points and queries were
raised:


Could a decision not to grant a Licence in a Cumulative Impact Area be appealed
against?

The Licensing and Business Support Manager advised that, like with any other
application that was refused, an applicant could appeal against a decision to not
grant a licence.


If there are a lot of Licensed Premises in one location surely there would be issues?

Page 16

- 13 COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING
AUTHORITY - 18 October 2016

In the case of Spalding, there were no figures to suggest that there was a problem.
But also, if incidents were reported it would be very hard to associate any incident
with a particular premises.


The public perceives that there were issues, were those figures shared with the
public?

The information gathered was provided by the Police, and was to be included within
the minutes of the meeting, which would also be of public record.


How was the Town Centre defined?

The information provided was based on Police beat areas, which was similar to the
DPPO which was in place.


Had the effect of a CIP in other areas been looked at and what effect had it had?

It was very difficult to compare one area with another, there were so many factors to
make it hard to see if what worked in one place would mean it would work in another.


Could information from Accident and Emergency wards be gathered?

It would be hard to relate any data to particular premises, especially as South Holland
did not have any emergency care facilities, the nearest ones were Peterborough and
Boston.
Councillor Chandler advised that he had been involved when a Cumulative Impact
Policy had been considered in 2013, at that time the figures gathered did not suggest
that there was a problem, the Police and the Legal advice did not support
implementation.
Councillor Dark noted that although there was no evidence to support the need of a
CIP, the public did have a perception that there was a problem and that Spalding
would benefit from one. He suggested that further communication to the public on
the Licensing Act 2003 was perhaps needed and if incidents occurred encourage the
public to report them. The Chairman advised that she had in the past been involved
with an article in the local press about the Licensing Act 2003 and Premises in South
Holland.
Daven Naghen, Maples Solicitors Spalding advised that to take any decision relating
to a CIP members would have to give it careful consideration, and acknowledge any
risks or challenges that any Policy may pose. He noted that a policy would only deal
with new applications for licences and not those that were already in place.
The members of the Committee considered the recommendation but agreed that
there was not sufficient evidence to support going forward with a CIP. Instead
members considered the options available to them, as indicated within the report:

Page 17

- 14 COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING
AUTHORITY - 18 October 2016



The Committee note the contents of this report and do nothing;



The Committee request that further work is carried out and legal opinion is
sought in relation to evidence for a CIP;



The Committee consider that there is sufficient information at this stage to proceed with
a formal review and consultation process.

Members agreed that none of the options reflected their views and that the following
recommendation be proposed:
That officers provide further evidence that may support a CIP and that be reported to
Committee along with a list which identified the pros and cons of putting a CIP in
place.
Members were all in agreement, with the recommendation and noted that no further
work should take place unless there was sufficient evidence and it was important to
know exactly what the risks were, if one were in place.
AGREED:
That officers provide further evidence that may support a CIP and that be reported to
Committee along with a list which identified the pros and cons of putting a CIP in
place.
(Ken McErlain (Communications Officer) and Daven Naghen (Maples Solicitors,
Spalding) left the meeting at 8.11pm., after consideration of the above item).
9.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were no declarations of interests.

10.

MINUTES
That the minutes of the meeting held on 14 July 2016, be agreed as a correct record,
subject to several minor typographical errors.

11.

QUARTERLY REPORT FOR THE LICENSING AUTHORITY
The Licensing Team were responsible for administering the statutory licensing
framework, which governed businesses and regulated activities in South Holland.
The Team carried out a wide range of interventions in order to ensure that licences
and registrations were issued correctly and in accordance with legal provisions.
Officers were also involved in monitoring activity, which included; carrying out
inspections, providing advice and carrying out investigations.

Page 18

- 15 COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING
AUTHORITY - 18 October 2016

Quarter 2: 1 July 2016 – 30 September 2016
The below table provided members with an update on the work undertaken by the
Licensing Team in relation to the Committee of the Licensing Authority:
Licence Type

Activity

Licensing Act 2003
Annual Fee Applications
New Applications
Cancel/Surrender
Minor Variations
Vary DPS
Transfer/Vary DPS
Disapply DPS
Transfer Applications
Update conditions
Suspension Applications
Suspension lifted
Review application
Club Premises Certificate
Annual Fee Applications
Personal Alcohol Licence
New Applications
Change name/address
Lost/Stolen
TEN – With Alcohol
TEN Applications
Late TEN – With Alcohol
TEN Applications
Response time for Temporary Event
Processed within 24 hours
Notices
Gambling Act 2005
Adult Gaming Centre
Premises Licence
Applications
Betting Premises Licence
Annual Fee Applications
Bingo Premises Licence
Annual Fee Application
Licensed Premises Gaming Machine
Annual Fee Application
Permit
Club Machine Permit
Annual Fee Application
Club Gaming Permit
Annual Fee Application
Notification of Gaming Machines
Cancel/Surrender
Small Society Lotteries
Annual Fee Applications
Change of Promoter
New Applications
Returns Received
Premises Licence

Page 19

Number
in Q2
30
3
1
2
9
3
1
3
8
16
11
1
1
17
6
1
34
6
100%
1
6
1
2
1
1
1
13
2
1
9

- 16 COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING
AUTHORITY - 18 October 2016

SHDC Statistics
Number of licensed premises under
Licensing Act 2003

332

Inspection or Intervention
Licensing Act 2003 premises
Outcomes
Panel Hearings
28 Sept 2016 Review of Premises Licence Super
Sam, 24 Commercial Road, Spalding
Appeals Ongoing
None
Appeals Withdrawn
Baltic, 14 – 16 Winsover Road (following
revocation of premises licence in Feb 2016)
Winsover Off Licence, 43 Winsover Rd, Spalding
(following revocation of premises licence in Feb
2016)
Other Work
Freedom of Information Act Requests

Number in Q2
7 high risk
2 medium risk
4 low risk
All without prior notice. Minor
non-compliances only found
Outcome
Adjourned
Scheduled Appeal Date
n/a
Outcome
Appeal withdrawn with effect
from 4 August 2016 and
agreement to pay costs.
Appeal withdrawn with effect
from 17 August 2016 and
agreement to pay costs.

1 in relation to Licensing Act
2003
Preparation for Appeals hearings including writing statement, transcribing hearings
and liaising with other parties
Safety Advisory Group and events advice
House of Lords Select Committee response on review of Licensing Act 2003
Training Food Officer on Licensing inspections
Liaison and sharing intelligence with Lincs Police and Trading Standards
Investigation in relation to sale of alcohol without duty stamp
Publication and distribution of updated posters on duty stamp campaign
Assistance with report for Public Space Protection Order
Cumulative Impact Policy information gathering and meeting with police
Investigation of complaints in conjunction with Environmental protection team in
relation to noise nuisance at licensed premises
High turnover of Temporary Event Notices due to summer events
Enforcement in respect of non-payment of annual fees including suspensions
High Volume of business enquiries in relation to amending premises and licensable
activities
Attendance at Pubwatch meeting
Ongoing development of website and online applications facility for Licensing Act
2003 applications. Expected to go live in November when payment portal and
applications procedures have been fully tested.

Page 20

- 17 COMMITTEE OF THE LICENSING
AUTHORITY - 18 October 2016

AGREED:
That the report be noted.
12.

PANEL HEARINGS - FEEDBACK AND DISCUSSION OF DATES AND
ORGANISATION OF HEARINGS
The Chairman invited the Committee to consider the current arrangement for
determining dates and composition of Panel of the Committee of the Licensing
Authority and Licensing Panels.
Currently dates were scheduled into members calendar every 21 days, for them to
keep free should a Panel be called. In the Protocol on Good Practice in Licensing for
Members and Officers Dealing with Licensing, Panels were to comprise of either the
Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Committee and two ordinary members, these
Panel members were to be selected by Democratic Services, delegated by the
Executive Manager Governance.
The Chairman advised that there had been a few occasions since May 2016, where
Panels had to be held outside the pre-scheduled dates, due to the legal timescales
involved.
Members had a brief discussion and concluded that in order to establish if the prescheduled dates were effective, it was needed to be trialled for longer, until the end of
the 2016/17 municipal year.
AGREED:
That the pre-scheduled dates remain in place until the end of the 2016/17 municipal
year, after which their effectiveness be reviewed.

13.

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT.
There were none.
(The meeting ended at 8.25 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8.b)

-6-

Minutes of a meeting of the LICENSING COMMITTEE held in the Meeting Room 1,
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 18 October 2016 at 8.26 pm.
PRESENT
A Harrison (Chairman)
T A Carter (Vice-Chairman)
G R Aley
M D Booth
A Casson
M G Chandler

G K Dark
J L King
C J Lawton
A M Newton

M J Pullen
E J Sneath
J Tyrrell

In Attendance: Councillors , Assistant Licensing Officer and Democratic Services
Support Officer
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors R Clark and
H Drury.
8.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were none.

9.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 14 July 2016, were agreed as a correct record,
subject to the alteration of a few typographical errors.

10.

QUARTERLY REPORT FOR LICENSING COMMITTEE
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Manager People and Public
Protection, which update members on activities relating to the work of the Licensing
Committee.
The Licensing Team were responsible for administering the statutory licensing
framework, which governed businesses and regulated activities in South Holland.
The Team carried out a wide range of interventions in order to ensure that licences
and registrations were issued correctly and in accordance with legal provisions.
Officers were also involved in monitoring activity, which included; carrying out
inspections, providing advice and carrying out investigations.
Quarter 2: 1 July 2016 – 30 September 2016
The table below provided an update on the work undertaken by the Licensing Team:
Licence Type
Riding Establishments
House to House collection

Activity
New Application
New Application

Page 23

Number in
Q2
1
3

-7LICENSING COMMITTEE - 18 October 2016

permits
Street collection permit
Street Trading consent
Combined Hackney/Private
Hire Driver licence
Hackney Carriage Licence

Private Hire Operator
Licence
Private Hire Vehicle Licence

Returns received
New permit
Returns received
New Application
Renewals
Renewal applications
New applications
Replacement licence
Immediate revocation
New applications
Renewals
Transfer
Suspension
Suspension lifted
Renewals

5
6
6
1
1
10
3
1
2
3
9
2
1
1
5

New applications
Renewals
Cancel/surrender
Immediate unfit application
Immediate unfit lifted
Suspension
Suspension lifted

3
34
1
3
3
1
1

Inspection or Intervention
Number in Q2
Taxi Vehicle Inspections
45
Total number of licensed vehicles SHDC
182
Riding establishment veterinary inspection
1
Dog breeding new premises inspection
1
Other Work
Freedom of Information Act Requests (taxi licensing;
4
taxi ranks; pet shops; dog breeding)
Supporting promotion of hate crime campaign and raising awareness of reporting for
taxi drivers, with Lincs Community Safety Partnership
Regional licensing forum
Preparation of taxi licensing training for members
Work to find alternative to DVSA assessments for new taxi driver assessments
Review of street trading policy and procedures
Investigation of unlicensed dog boarding premises x 2
Investigation of taxi parking complaints
Safeguarding training for taxi drivers
Licensing team review of Taxi Licensing Policy and Procedures
Officer training on Scrap Metal Licensing and preparation for Scrap Metal Licence
renewals
Immediate Revocations
Outcome
Taxi driver – medical grounds
Revoked
Taxi driver – medical grounds
Revoked

Page 24

-8LICENSING COMMITTEE - 18 October 2016

AGREED:
Members noted the content of the report.
11.

STREET TRADING
The Licensing and Business Support Manager, Donna Hall, was in attendance to
provide members with an update on proposed changes to street trading procedures.
Street Trading Licensing had been in place for just over a year, and was to be
reviewed. Craig Fowler (Food Safety Manager) was leading on that review and
asked for members to be informed of the proposed changes.




To make it much clearer where the locations were where street trading may
take place;
Ice cream van vendors to have basic disclosure checks and have safeguarding
training;
A new structure of fees to take into account those who do not trade all year
round.

Members were advised that it was likely that the committee would receive a report in
more detail in early 2017.
12.

TAXI DRIVER LICENSING - NEW DRIVER ASSESSMENTS
Members were advised that as from December 2016, the DVSA would not longer be
providing driver assessments. Undertaking the DVSA driver assessment was a
requirement in South Holland’s Taxi Licensing Policy, for all new drivers to undertake
in order to be issued with a licence.
It had come apparent to the Licensing Team that although the assessments were to
stop in December 2016, all available appointments had already been filled. In order
to still fulfil the assessment criteria within the Policy, the Team had been working with
Lincs Road Safety Partnership, with them facilitating a course which fulfilled the
requirements.
Long term the Licensing Team were working with the Procurement Team to source
and put in place suitable assessments for prospective applicants.

13.

ANIMAL WELFARE LICENSING
Members of the Committee received a presentation from Donna Hall (Licensing and
Business Support Manager) and Lesley Ayers (Assistant Licensing Officer) on Animal
Welfare Licensing.
The presentation detailed numbers of licenced zoos, kennels and catteries along with
licenced breeders etc. In addition they were advised the process applicants had to
complete in order to be granted a licence.

Page 25

-9LICENSING COMMITTEE - 18 October 2016

14.

ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT.
There were none.
(The meeting ended at 9.01 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 26

-5-

Agenda Item 8.c)

Minutes of a meeting of the JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL AND
POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices,
Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 25 October 2016 at 6.30 pm.
B Alcock
G R Aley
D Ashby
J R Astill
M D Booth
T A Carter

PRESENT
G K Dark
L J Eldridge
P C Foyster
R Grocock
C N Johnson
A M Newton

M J Pullen
J L Reynolds
J Tyrrell
A R Woolf

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C J T H Brewis,
R Clark, A Harrison, J L King, J D McLean and A C Tennant.
In Attendance: The Executive Manager - People and Public Protection, the
Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager and the Democratic Services
Officer.
Action By

9.

ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN
Consideration was given as to who should preside over the Joint
meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy
Development Panel.
AGREED:
That Councillor B Alcock act as Chairman for the duration of the
joint meeting of the Performance Monitoring Panel and Policy
Development Panel.

10.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
There were none.

11.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
AGREED:
That, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in Paragraph 3 of part 1 of
Schedule 12A of the Act.

12.

TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director,
Strategy and Governance, which provided the Joint Panel with an

Page 27

-6JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 25 October 2016

update on progress to date of ‘Moving Forward’, the Council’s
transformation programme.
The Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager provided
information on the various projects, and how they were
progressing as part of the programme.
AGREED:
a) That the information provided within the report be noted;
GP

b) That with regard to ICT Options, thorough forward planning be
undertaken to ensure that there was sufficient provision for
new partners coming on board later in the process;
c) That it was vital that the process kept on track;
d) That consideration be given to the promotion at Springfields
Outlet Centre of Ayscoughfee Hall Museum and Gardens and
the South Holland Centre in Spalding; and
e) That when leisure service provision was considered, the Joint
Scrutiny Panel be given an opportunity as soon as possible to
consider proposals and provide input.
13.

'MOVING FORWARD' TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME
BENEFITS REALISATION MODEL
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director,
Strategy and Governance, which outlined the model of benefits
realisation that the ‘Moving Forward’ Transformation Programme
was using to measure its success.
The report stated that in order for Moving Forward to be
successful, it should be ensured that all benefits to the Authority
were identified and captured effectively. This would be done
through the development of Benefits Cards for every project that
was part of the programme. This would enable the Programme
Officer to monitor and track when anticipated benefits were
realised/delivered. To enable this to happen, the following had to
be undertaken:




Identify both cash and non-cashable benefits at the point of
project inception;
Validate and continuously review expected benefits throughout
the project;
Enable benefits to be realised by investing in new ways of

Page 28

-7JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 25 October 2016

working
The model showed that while ‘Moving Forward’ was looking to
deliver savings through cost avoidance, this was not the only type
of benefit the programme would deliver. To ensure that the
programme was successful, it would need to deliver customer
satisfaction , and make quality improvements to services.
Members considered and discussed the information detailed
within the report.
AGREED:
a) <2>That the information provided within the report be noted;
b) That the issues raised by the Panel be taken into account;
c) That Joint Panel members be provided with information on
what could be measured in relation to customer satisfaction;
and
d) That a measure of savings realised be presented to members
for scrutiny at relevant intervals.
14.

TRANSFORMATION - DIGITAL PAYMENT PHASE 2
(DISTRICT PROVISION)
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager
for People and Public Protection which detailed Digital Payment
Phase 2 (District Provision), part of the Authority’s Transformation
programme.
The proposals within the report detailed how the Authority would
expand the ability to make payments for Council services across
the district, by use of Pay Point, Post Office and digital solutions.
This proposal would enable residents and businesses greater
flexibility in the way that they payed, and aligned with the
Corporate Priority of providing the right service at the right time
and in the right way.
Members commented that there were some areas of the District
that were not covered by these additional payment solutions
however it was acknowledged that the locations secured to date
still provided thirty more locations for payment than were currently
available. Ward members were encouraged to identify payment
locations within their wards to broaden the offer available to the
public.

Page 29

GP

-8JOINT PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL AND POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL - 25 October 2016

The Executive Manager People and Public Protection advised
that the second recommendation of the recommendations to be
made to Cabinet was to be changed to read as follows:


That the Priory Road cash desk remain open to facilitate the
Transformation programme, until the Authority was required to
accommodate its third party partners or organisations, or by
Autumn 2017

Information provided within the report was considered and the
following issues were raised:


Members commented that there were some areas of the
District that were not covered by these additional payment
solutions however it was acknowledged that the locations
secured to date still provided thirty more locations for payment
than were currently available. Officers/members should be
proactive in finding sites to ensure that there was a more even
spread of service across the district.



Communication was vital to ensure that customers were
aware of the new options for payment that would be available
to them.

AGREED:
a) That the information provided within the report be noted; and
b) That the Cabinet be advised of the following issues raised by
the Joint Panel:
i.

That some areas of the District were not covered by the
additional payment solutions, and that officers/members
should be proactive in finding sites to ensure that there
was a more even spread of service across the district;
and

ii.

That communication to customers was vital to ensure
they were aware of the new options for payment that
would be available to them.

(The meeting ended at 8.08 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 30

-9-

Agenda Item 8.d)

Minutes of a meeting of the POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL held in Meeting Room
1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 1 November 2016 at 6.30 pm.
PRESENT
A R Woolf (Chairman)
J D McLean (Vice-Chairman)
D Ashby
J R Astill
M D Booth
G K Dark

H Drury
A Harrison
C N Johnson
M J Pullen

J L Reynolds
J Tyrrell

In Attendance: The Executive Manager - People and Public Protection, the Place
Manager, the Development Manager and the Democratic Services Officer.
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors R Clark,
L J Eldridge and J L King.
Action By

13.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting of the Policy Development Panel held
on 5 July 2016 were signed by the Chairman as a correct record.
AGREED:
That the minutes of the Policy Development Panel meeting held
on 5 July 2016 be signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

14.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
There were none.

15.

QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6
There were none.

16.

TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS
There were none.

17.

ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE PERFORMANCE MONITORING
PANEL
There were none.

18.

KEY DECISION PLAN
Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan, published on

Page 31

- 10 POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 1
November 2016

19 September 2016.
AGREED:
That the Key Decision Plan be noted.
19.

PRE-APPLICATION PLANNING GUIDANCE
At its meeting on 5 July 2016, the Policy Development Panel had
requested that a Planning Officer be invited to the next meeting to
discuss pre-application guidance, to include the positive impact
the planning service’s guidance had on applications. The
Development Manager was therefore in attendance and provided
information of pre-application planning advice at South Holland
District Council.
Members considered the information and the following issues
were raised:


Members asked what percentage of the number of preapplication enquiries went on to full applications. Officers
replied that it was difficult to provide an accurate figure as
there were many variables, including the length of time
between advice and application.



Open space on housing estates was a continuing problem with
regard to ownership, maintenance and management. The
Panel was advised that the Performance Monitoring Panel had
proposed a Task Group to look at these issues.



What was the cost to the Authority of providing free advice,
and did this outweigh any benefits? Officers advised that from
a commercialisation standpoint, consideration should be given
to charging for advice. However, the cost was currently
absorbed as part of the planning process and usually made
the planning application process smoother. Although preapplication advice was free, a charge was made for planning
applications.



There was some discussion as to whether or not the Authority
should make a charge for pre-application advice and who
should pay for it. Officers commented that, should this ever be
considered, the consequences of any charging policy would
have to be thought through very carefully, as would the
wording of it.



Members asked if there was any way in which the Panel could
help in relation to a good design policy to assist with pre-

Page 32

- 11 POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 1
November 2016

application guidance. Officers advised that the Performance
Monitoring Panel had recently undertaken a Review of
Implemented Planning Decisions, that it had come to a
number of conclusions and one of the recommendations to the
Planning Committee was that greater consideration be given
to the design and layout of housing development through the
exploration of the potential for a specific Supplementary
Planning Document to be produced as part of the emerging
Local Plan. The Panel’s recommendations would be
presented to the Planning Committee for consideration at the
end of the month. It was suggested that the Policy
Development Panel’s interest in this area be reported to the
Performance Monitoring Panel, with a view to a small number
of members of both Panels working together to assist with
good design.
AGREED:
a) That the information provided by the Development Manager
be noted; and
b) That the Performance Monitoring Panel be advised of the
Policy Development Panel’s wish for a joint Task Group to
work together to assist with good design, should the
recommendations arising from the Review of Implemented
Planning Decisions be adopted by the Planning Committee.
20.

REVIEW OF THE EXISTING DESIGNATED PUBLIC PLACE
ORDER IN SPALDING TOWN CENTRE
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager,
People and Public Protection, which sought a review of the
existing Designated Public Place Order (DPPO) in light of new
tools and powers following the introduction of the Anti-Social
Behaviour, Police and Crime Act 2014.
The Panel had considered a report at its meeting on 26 April 2016
which informed of the ongoing consultation on the current DPPO
in Spalding Town Centre. It had been requested that the formal
Public Space Protection Order (PSPO) document be submitted
again to the Policy Development Panel once it had been drafted,
in order to reflect responses from the consultation, and this was
the information under consideration.
The Panel considered the report and supported the
recommended option 4. It also suggested that a new PSPO be
considered, to include the wider riverbank area and to include a
number of additional behaviours suggested during the

Page 33

CM

- 12 POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 1
November 2016

consultation period.
AGREED:
a) That the report of the Executive Manager, People and Public
Protection be noted;
b) That the recommended Option 4, as detailed within the report,
be supported; and
c) That a new Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO) be
considered, to include the wider riverbank area, and to include
a number of additional behaviours suggested during the
consultation period.
21.

POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL WORK PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the Policy
Development Panel. The Work Programme consisted of two
separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the future
Panel meetings along with proposed items for consideration, and
the second setting out the Task Groups that had been identified
by the Panel.
Feedback relating to the following issues was sought:


Apprenticeships – The development of apprenticeships and
the Authority’s role in this had been considered at meetings of
the Policy Development Panel in 2015. No update had been
received on the current position and members wished to be
advised of progress. The Executive Manager People and
Public Protection advised that legislation relating to
apprenticeships was expected from the Government, and that
an update could be provided to a future meeting on 9 May
2017. In the meantime, the Panel requested that they be
provided with details of the current position.



Transformation – At a meeting of the Joint Performance
Monitoring and Policy Development Panel in May 2015, there
had been a discussion on the Transformation Programme
Progress Update. It had been requested that the Develop
Investment Asset Portfolio to maximise income project be
brought back to the Panel for further debate. This issue had
not been presented to the joint Panel at its recent meeting and
officers were therefore requested to address this.



Members questioned when the Public Open Spaces Task

Page 34

PA

- 13 POLICY DEVELOPMENT PANEL - 1
November 2016

Group would begin its work. The Panel was advised that as
previously agreed, this would commence once the work of the
Paper and Postage costs throughout the Authority Task Group
had concluded.
AGREED:
a) That both sections of the Panel’s Work Programme, as set out
in the report of the Executive Manager Governance, be noted;
b) That an update regarding the development of apprenticeships
and the Authority’s role in this be presented to the Panel at its
meeting on 9 May 2017 and that in the interim, Panel
members be provided with details of the current position;
c) That the Develop Investment Asset Portfolio to maximise
income project be presented to a future meeting of the Joint
Performance Monitoring and Policy Development Panel,
considering the Transformation project.
(The meeting ended at 8.15 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 35

PA

GP

This page is intentionally left blank

- 69 -

Agenda Item 8.e)

Minutes of a meeting of the PLANNING COMMITTEE held in the Council Chamber,
Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Wednesday, 2 November 2016 at 6.30
pm.
PRESENT
R Gambba-Jones (Chairman)
J Avery (Vice-Chairman)
B Alcock
D Ashby
C J T H Brewis
A Casson

P E Coupland
H Drury
R Grocock
C J Lawton

J L Reynolds
A C Tennant
J Tyrrell
P A Williams

In Attendance: The Development Manager, the Principal Planning Officer, the
Consultant Planning Solicitor and the Democratic Services Officer.
Councillor P C Foyster and M J Pullen (Ward members).
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors L J Eldridge
and M D Seymour.
150.

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
The Planning Advisor reported that notification had been received that Councillor M D
Seymour had been substituted by Councillor A Casson as a member of the
Committee for that meeting only.

151.

MINUTES
The minutes of the Planning Committee meeting held on 28 September 2016 were
signed by the Chairman as a correct record.
(Moved by Councillor R Grocock and seconded by Councillor C J Lawton).

152.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
Councillor A Casson declared an interest in respect of agenda item 8 (full application
for Change of Use of dwelling to house of multiple occupation for 8 persons
(retrospective) re-submission of H16-0001-16 at 18 Wygate Meadows, Spalding) as
his daughter lived on this road. He therefore advised that he would withdraw from
the meeting during the consideration of that item.

153.

QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION (STANDING
ORDERS).
No questions were asked under the Council’s Constitution (Standing Orders).

Page 37

- 70 PLANNING COMMITTEE - 2 November
2016

154.

H09-0521-14
Plan No. and Applicant
H09-0521-14
Ashley King Developments Ltd

Proposal
Residential development of up to 900
dwellings, with access off Hall Gate
and Fen Road, including primary
school, public open space, drainage
infrastructure, landscaping, including
demolition of two dwellings and
agricultural buildings (but not listed
Manor Farm and adjacent
outbuildings) at Manor Farm, Fen
Road, Holbeach

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had been previously circulated to all members.
Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.
DECISION:
That outline planning permission be granted, subject to the completion of the Section
106 agreement appended to the report and those Conditions listed at Section 4.0 of
the report with condition 24 to be deleted as it replicated condition 17, and condition
12 amended to five years to be consistent with condition 11.
(Moved by Councillor Gambba-Jones and seconded by Councillor Tennant)
(Councillor Foyster attended the meeting as a ward member and spoke against the
application.)
155.

H09-0468-16
Plan No. and Applicant
H09-0468-16
Lincolnshire County Council and Mr R
H and Mr A Goodley

Proposal
Proposed residential development of
approximately 650 dwellings, site
access, open space and landscaping
at
Land
West
of
Holbeach,
Lincolnshire

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had been previously circulated to all members.

Page 38

- 71 PLANNING COMMITTEE - 2 November
2016

Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.
DECISION:
a) That Outline Planning Permission be granted, subject to the Conditions listed at
Section 9.0 of the report; and subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106
Agreement with the South Holland District Council and Lincolnshire County
Council as the local highway authority and education authority for the provision of,
or contributions towards Affordable Housing, Open Space, Health Care Facilities,
Highways, Town Centre Improvements and Education; and
b) That authority to determine final details of the terms of the conditions of the
planning permission be delegated to the Development Manager.
(Moved by Councillor Tennant and seconded by Councillor Brewis.)
(An oral representation was received in respect of the above application in
accordance with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee
meetings:
Supporter
156.

Mr Michael Braithwaite (Agent))

H09-0771-16
Plan No. and Applicant
H09-0771-16
University of Lincoln

Proposal
Proposed Centre of Excellence in
Agri Food with associated roads, car
parking and landscaping at Land
West of A151, Holbeach

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had been previously circulated to all members.
Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.

Page 39

- 72 PLANNING COMMITTEE - 2 November
2016

DECISION:
a) That Outline Planning Permission be granted, subject to those Conditions listed at
Section 9.0 of the report; and
b) That authority to determine final details of the terms of the conditions of the
planning permission be delegated to the Development Manager.
(Moved by Councillor Drury and seconded by Councillor Tennant.)
(Councillor Foyster attended the meeting as a ward member and spoke in support of
the application.)
(An oral representation was received in respect of the above application in
accordance with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee
meetings:
Supporter
157.

Val Braybrook (Applicant))

H16-0764-16
Plan No. and Applicant
H16-0764-16
Mr S Edwards

Proposal
Change of Use of dwelling to house
of multiple occupation for 8 persons
(retrospective) re-submission of H160001-16 at 18 Wygate Meadows,
Spalding

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had been previously circulated to all members.
Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.
DECISION:
That the planning permission be refused for the following reason:
The proposed intensity of use would be out of character with the surrounding
dwellings and would cause a significant and adverse impact on residential amenity by
way of noise and disturbance and levels of activity out of keeping with this residential
area. The proposals additionally had the potential to lead to a proliferation of
vehicles at the site with subsequent loss of amenity through parking of multiple

Page 40

- 73 PLANNING COMMITTEE - 2 November
2016

vehicles and car movements leading to noise and disturbance. The proposal was
therefore contrary to Policy SG17 and Policy HS18 of the South Holland Local Plan
2006, and to the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework 2012.
(Moved by Councillor Gambba-Jones and seconded by Councillor Drury.)
(An oral representation was received in respect of the above application in
accordance with the Council’s scheme of public speaking at Planning Committee
meetings:
Objector

Councillor Angela Newton (On behalf of the residents.))

(Councillor A Casson declared an interest in respect of the above item. He withdrew
from the meeting at 7.39 pm and returned at 7.51 pm, during consideration of the
item.)
158.

H01-0608-16
Plan No. and Applicant
H01-0608-16
Ashley King Developments Ltd

Proposal
Residential development of 37
dwellings – approved under H010776-14. Modification of Condition 3
relating to affordable housing. Land
off Backgate, Cowbit, Spalding

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had been previously circulated to all members.
Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.
DECISION:
That Permission be Granted subject to those Conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the
report with condition 24 to be deleted as it replicated condition 11, condition 25 to be
reworded to require details of proposed arrangements for future maintenance of the
streets to be submitted and approved and thereafter maintained until an agreement
has been entered into under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980.
(Moved by Councillor Gambba-Jones and seconded by Councillor Casson.)
(Councillor Brewis wished it to be recorded in the minutes that he voted against this
recommendation.)

Page 41

- 74 PLANNING COMMITTEE - 2 November
2016

(Councillor Foyster left the meeting at 8.00 pm, during discussion of the above item.)
(Councillor Pullen left the meeting at 8.05pm and re-joined the meeting at 8.07 pm
during discussion of the above item.)
159.

H23-0508-16
Plan No. and Applicant
H23-0508-16
Haycroft Homes Ltd

Proposal
Residential development comprising
33 dwellings at Land Adjacent 355
High Road, Whaplode

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had been previously circulated to all members.
Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.
DECISION:
That Permission be Granted subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106
agreement in respect of a financial contribution towards education provision of
£67,965, the provision of 7 units of affordable housing and those Conditions listed at
Section 9.0 of the report with conditions 4 and 5 reworded to refer to occupation
rather than commencement, the addition of phrase less the carriageway and footpath
surface course to be added and condition 17 to be reworded to require details of
proposed arrangements for future maintenance of the streets to be submitted and
approved and thereafter maintained until an agreement has been entered into under
Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980.
(Moved by Councillor Lawton and seconded by Councillor Casson.)
160.

H09-0770-16
Plan No. and Applicant
H09-0770-16
Seagate Homes Ltd

Proposal
Residential Development – 19
dwellings at Land: Church Street,
Holbeach

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had been previously circulated to all members.

Page 42

- 75 PLANNING COMMITTEE - 2 November
2016

The Development Manager explained that there were errors in the report and that the
proposal was for 19 x 3 bed houses and section 7.8 was incorrect in that there was a
bathroom window in the side elevation of Plot 19. Condition 2 to be amended to only
refer to the Hunt housetype.
Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.
DECISION:
That Permission be Granted subject to the conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the
report.
(Moved by Councillor Drury and seconded by Councillor Tennant.)
161.

H05-0519-16
Plan No. and Applicant
H05-0519-16
D&R Property Services Ltd

Proposal
Residential
development
(19
dwellings) at Eastfields Hostel, 41
Fleet Road, Fleet, Spalding

Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager upon which the
above application was to be determined, including his recommendations, copies of
which had been previously circulated to all members.
Members debated the matter and fully explored the details of the application in light
of prevailing policies and guidance. That debate was not repeated here as Planning
Committee meetings were web-cast and could be viewed in full at
www.sholland.gov.uk for a limited period of time following which the recording could
be made available by request.
DECISION:
That Permission be Granted subject to the applicant entering into a Section 106
agreement in respect of the provision of 4 units of affordable housing and those
Conditions listed at Section 9.0 of the report with conditions 4 and 5 reworded to refer
to occupation rather than commencement, the addition of phrase less the
carriageway and footpath surface course to be added to condition 4 and condition 16
to be reworded to require details of proposed arrangements for future maintenance of
the streets to be submitted and approved and thereafter maintained until an
agreement has been entered into under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980.
(Moved by Councillor Coupland and seconded by Councillor Tyrrell.)

Page 43

- 76 PLANNING COMMITTEE - 2 November
2016

162.

PLANNING APPEALS
Consideration was given to the report of the Development Manager which provided
an update on recent appeal decisions.
Members noted that since the last report, two planning appeal decisions had been
received. The appeals were dismissed. From 1 April 2016, sixteen appeals had
been determined, fourteen were dismissed and two allowed, which equated to a
success rate of 87.5%.
DECISION:
That the report be noted.

163.

PLANNING UPDATES
No planning updates were received.
(The meeting ended at 8.46 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 44

- 18 -

Agenda Item 8.f)

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in Meeting
Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 8 November 2016 at
6.30 pm.
PRESENT
B Alcock (Chairman)
M D Booth (Vice-Chairman)
G R Aley
C J T H Brewis
T A Carter
P C Foyster

R Grocock
J L King
J D McLean
A M Newton

A C Tennant
J Tyrrell

In Attendance: The Place Manager, the Corporate Improvement and Performance
Manager, the Democratic Services Officer and the Portfolio Holder Governance and
Customer.
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors J R Astill,
R Clark and G K Dark.
Action By

21.

PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW REPORT - QUARTER 2 2016/17
With the permission of the Chairman, this item was considered as
the first item of business at the meeting.
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director
Strategy and Governance which provided an update on Council
performance for the period 1 July 2016 to 30 September 2016.
Areas where performance had improved since the previous period
(Q1 2016/2017) were brought to Members’ attention, as were
areas of concern where performance was below expected levels
or was considered to be worsening.
Quarter 2 saw increased levels of performance against the
majority of indicators compared to the performance seen in
quarter 1. Performance was rated as good with 62.5% of
indicators being green which indicated good performance. There
were 3 amber indicators and 3 red indicators which in total made
up the remaining 37.5% of indicators.
Areas of success highlighted within the report included: Housing
Re-Let Times; Commercial Property; Staffing; Planning;
Revenues; and Working Days Lost to Sickness per FTE.
Areas of concern highlighted within the report included the
following:

Page 45

- 19 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8
November 2016

Missed Waste Collection Rate
The average incidence of missed waste collection was still above
the monthly target however Quarter 2 showed a significant
improvement against the previous quarter. Performance was
improving and it was hoped that the results for Quarter 3 would be
within target.
Housing Benefit LA Error Rate
The Housing Benefit error rate currently stood at 0.54% against a
target of 0.48%. In September, work commenced to implement a
clearance strategy to deal with the backlog of outstanding work
relating to the processing of claims, with a third party (Civica)
being commissioned to help with this process. Performance
figures had shown a decline, which was to be expected. This
area was now subject to a weekly senior management scrutiny
between Compass Point Business Services and South Holland
District Council, to ensure that the position was improved.
The Panel considered this information and the following answers
were provided in response to members’ questions:









Penalties incurred for missed targets - There were two
thresholds above the target amount. If the upper threshold
was exceeded, administration monies received for processing
would be lost, if the lower threshold was exceeded, part of
these monies would be lost. The aim was to hit the 0.48%
target by the end of the financial year
Could the risk be quantified? - Officers did not have this
information available. Panel members would be provided with
exact figures in due course.
Clearing easier cases first to reduce backlog could be at the
detriment of claimants whose cases were more complex Officers stated that this was an issue to be clarified with
officers at CPBS tasked with resolving the backlog issue.
Officers would liaise with them to obtain guidance.
There could potentially be a number of reasons why the
current position had been arrived at e.g.
resourcing/training/processes etc. Managers at CPBS had
been tasked with understanding the reasons for the situation.
In any event, the backlog clearance had to take no longer than
three months.
With regard to the monitoring of errors, Civica would be
identifying errors that were found. The situation was being
monitored daily by managers at CPBS. Senior officers at
SHDC, East Lindsey District Council and CPBS were
monitoring Civica’s work on a weekly basis. In addition, the

Page 46

- 20 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8
November 2016







current workload of existing staff was also being monitored for
any mistakes. A review of the service would be undertaken in
January.2017.
What was the cost to the Authority of Civica undertaking this
work? - Officers did not have details of these costs, but Panel
members would be provided with figures in due course.
The Housing Benefit error rate of 0.54% was a percentage
based on the value of all claims. The total number of claims
was not known – Panel members would be advised of the
figure in due course.
Consideration should be given to the cost involved to bring the
error rate below 0.48%, weighed against the amount of the
penalty.
Members’ main concern was that the issues around the
Housing Benefit error rate was a recurring problem with similar
problems over the last couple of years. A real solution needed
to be found.

In addition to concerns raised, members also requested that the
following changes be made to performance reports in the future to
enable better understanding of the information and trends:




Figures rather than percentages would give a clearer picture.
Members were advised that in some cases, if numbers were
low, it could be easy to identify individuals. Also figures were
reported by percentage nationally, and these were used for
comparison purposes. However, it was agreed that
numerated and denominated figures could be provided in
future reports.
In some instances, it would be useful to provide information on
issues in order to see previous trends.

AGREED:
a) That the report of the Executive Director Strategy and
Governance be noted;
b) That the Chief Executive and the Executive Director Strategy
and Governance be made aware of the Panel’s concerns in
relation to the Housing Benefit LA Error Rate issues identified
within the report;

GP

CM, GP

c) That officers ascertain the following information and feed back
to Panel members:
i.
ii.

Quantification of risk of missing targets;
The cost to the Authority of Civica undertaking its work
to process outstanding claims;

Page 47

GP

- 21 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8
November 2016

iii.

The total number of claims upon which the Housing
Benefit error rate was calculated.

d) That the following information be provided in future
performance monitoring reports:
i.
ii.

Numerated and denominated figures;
Where necessary, information showing previous trends

(Councillor Newton left the meeting during discussion of this item
as she was a Board Member at Compass Point Business
Services (East Coast) Ltd).
(The Corporate Improvement and Performance Manager and the
Portfolio Holder Governance and Customer left the meeting
following discussion of the above item.)
22.

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 30 August 2016 were signed
by the Chairman as a correct record.
The following issues were raised:




Crime and Disorder update – (b) That within their own wards,
Councillors be requested to promote the Community Safety
Survey, engagement events and the reporting of all crime.
o Members requested that more information be
provided on these initiatives.
Crime and Disorder update – (c) That the Lincolnshire
Community Safety Partnership’s 2015/16 Community Safety
Report be circulated to Panel members after it had been
considered by the Board.
o Members questioned when this would be available
and were advised that the Community Safety
Partnership would be meeting soon and it was
hoped that the report would be available shortly.



CCTV update – Work on the CCTV system was still not
complete in Crowland. Members requested that an update on
the current position be provided.



Network Rail – All members had been invited to attend a
briefing with Network Rail, prior to the meeting of Council on
26 September 2016 to raise issues of concern. Many Panel
members had attended and they stated that they were
satisfied with the responses they had received from the

Page 48

EH, CM

EH, CM

EH, CM

- 22 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8
November 2016

representatives, relating to ongoing issues.
AGREED:
a) That the minutes of the Performance Monitoring Panel
meeting held on 30 August 2016 be signed by the Chairman
as a correct record; and
b) That responses be received to outstanding issues raised by
the Panel in relation to the Crime and Disorder and CCTV
updates.
23.

DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.
There were none.

24.

QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6
There were none.

25.

TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS
There were none.

26.

ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT
PANEL.
There were none.

27.

KEY DECISION PLAN
Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan issued on 19
September 2016.
AGREED:
That the Key Decision Plan issued on 19 September 2016 be
noted.

28.

REVIEW OF IMPLEMENTED PLANNING DECISIONS
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Director
Place which reported on the recent review of implemented
planning decisions and requested that the Panel consider the
findings.
The Probity in Planning guidance, issued by the Local
Government Association, highlighted that the report of the Audit

Page 49

- 23 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8
November 2016

Commission ‘Building in Quality’ recommended that councillors
revisit a sample of implemented planning permissions to assess
the quality of the decisions. Such a review should improve the
quality and consistency of decision-making, strengthening public
confidence in the planning system, and could also help with
review of planning policy. It further stated that review by the
Panel should include examples of a broad range of categories,
such as major and minor development, permitted departures,
upheld appeals, listed building works and enforcement cases.
In order to revisit a number of implemented planning permissions,
the Performance Monitoring Panel undertook a tour on 15
September 2016, visiting a number of different sites throughout
the district. Sites were chosen to represent a range of types and
sizes of development and decisions, in accordance with the
Protocol. It included a range of large and small-scale residential
developments, at differing stages of completion, as well as a
completed solar farm and single wind turbine. Following the tour,
a debriefing session was held to review the day and draw
conclusions, and these were detailed at section 3.2 of the report.
All Panel members that had attended agreed that it had been a
very worthwhile exercise, well-structured, and that there had been
a good variety of applications to consider. It was felt that the
review should continue on a bi-ennial basis.
One common issue that had arisen whilst visiting some of the new
developments was with regard to the finishing off of footpaths. It
was understood that it was not possible to do this with roads, but
footpaths should be finished off as quickly as possible. The Place
Manager advised that this consideration could be picked up within
the second and fourth recommendations detailed within the
report. The Panel was advised that the conditions were imposed
by LCC and that in its review of conditions, the Authority needed
to make these changes. It was necessary for conditions to be
worded correctly.
Members were advised that the Policy Development Panel were
aware of the Panel’s Review of Implemented Planning Decisions,
and that they were keen that both Panels work together to assist
with good design. It was agreed that this could happen, with the
Policy Development Panel’s consent, in the following way:




That two members of the Performance Monitoring Panel join a
Task Group set up by the Policy Development Panel to review
public open spaces (Councillor Alcock and Councillor Newton
volunteered to do this if required);
That alongside the issues already agreed by the Policy

Page 50

- 24 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8
November 2016

Development Panel for consideration by the Review of Public
Open Spaces Task Group, recommendations made following
the Tour also be addressed, particularly those relating to open
space and the finishing off of pavements in new
developments.
AGREED:
a) That the following actions, arising from issues considered
during the tour, be recommended to the Planning Committee
PN

i.

That consideration of evidence on viability of housing
schemes is more transparent and robustly challenged
to ensure the delivery of schemes as originally
approved. It is suggested that the District Valuer (or
equivalent) is contacted with a view to exploring
member training on viability;

ii.

That greater consideration is given to the design and
layout of housing development through the exploration
of the potential for a specific Supplementary Planning
Document to be produced as part of the emerging Local
Plan. This should also seek to address design
responses to increase floor levels on the basis of flood
risk;

iii.

That consideration is given to effective long-term open
space management and the mechanisms for
successfully delivering of site contributions in lieu of onsite provision. This could be achieved through a
revised Supplementary Planning Document on Open
Space, as part of the emerging Local Plan, as well as
through the Council’s commercialisation agenda;

iv.

That planning conditions are reviewed to ensure that
they are precise and enforceable. For example, there
is concern as to at what point developers should
complete the finished surfacing of roads that serve
development;

v.

That an up-to-date ‘Enforcement Plan’ is produced with
a view to supporting effective and timely enforcement;

vi.

That members are encouraged to undertake their own,
or exceptionally, request Committee undertake site
visits, where there is considered to be a significant
impact, for example wind and solar farms.

Page 51

- 25 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8
November 2016
b) That it be recommended to the Planning Committee that the

Review of Implemented Planning Decisions tour continue on a
biennial basis;
c) That the Performance Monitoring and Policy Development
Panels work together in order to promote design, and that with
the Policy Development Panel’s consent, this be undertaken
as follows:

29.

i.

That two members of the Performance Monitoring Panel
join a Task Group already set up by the Policy
Development Panel to review public open spaces

ii.

That Councillor Alcock and Councillor Newton be members
of this joint Task Group;

iii.

That alongside the issues already agreed by the Policy
Development Panel for consideration by the Review of
Public Open Spaces Task Group, recommendations made
by the Performance Monitoring Panel following the review
of implemented planning decisions also be addressed,
particularly those relating to open space and the finishing
off of pavements in new developments.

CM, PN

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager
Governance, which set out the Work Programme of the
Performance Monitoring Panel. The Work Programme consisted
of two separate sections, the first setting out the dates of the
future Panel meetings along with proposed items for
consideration, and the second setting out the Task Groups that
had been identified by the Panel. The following issues were
raised:




A discussion regarding drainage in the South Holland area,
with attendance by a representative from a local board and
PJ
national strategic partnership had been expected at the
meeting. It was confirmed that this would now take place at
the next scheduled meeting.
A report detailing how the Authority would undertake
ES
enforcement in the future, through a coordinated Authoritywide approach to enforcement and undertaking of preventative
educational measures would be presented to the next
scheduled Panel meeting. The Place Manager provided
members with an overview of enforcement undertaken by
various departments across the Authority, and this information
was tabled at the meeting.

Page 52

- 26 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 8
November 2016



CM
There were a number of issues detailed within Appendix B to
the report that had been identified as potential Task Groups by
the Panel. The Chairman would liaise with the Democratic
Services Officer to consider if any of these could be removed.

AGREED:
a) That both sections of the Panel’s Work Programme, as set out
in the report of the Executive Manager Governance, be noted;
and
b) That the Chairman liaise with the Democratic Services Officer
to consider whether any issues detailed within Appendix B of
the report could be removed.
(The meeting ended at 8.22 pm)
(End of minutes)

Page 53

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Cabinet

To:

Council – 7 December 2016

(Author:

Christine Morgan - Democratic Services Officer)

Subject:

Report from Cabinet meeting held on 8 November 2016

Purpose:

To consider recommendations of the Cabinet in respect of:
a) UK Municipal Bond Agency
(Cabinet minute 18/16) (Cabinet Agenda Item 9)
b) ICT Service and Infrastructure
(Cabinet minute 21/16) (Cabinet Agenda Item 13))

Recommendations:
UK Municipal Bond Agency
a)

To approve the Council’s entry into the Framework Agreement and its accompanying
schedules including the joint and several guarantee;

b) That delegated authority is given to the Executive Director, Commercialisation as Section 151
Officer in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance to agree amendments to the
Framework Agreement as appropriate; and
c) That subject to due diligence and assessment of the legal and financial implications of the
proposal, delegated authority be given to the Executive Director, Commercialisation as Section
151 Officer and the Executive Director, Strategy and Governance as Monitoring Officer to sign
agreed final documents, as appropriate, on behalf of the Council.
ICT Service and Infrastructure
c)

That the Council approves a capital budget of £523,000 to fund infrastructure improvements, a
device refresh programme, and enhanced network connection to Breckland Council as part of
an improved disaster recovery plan, and to enable Council-wide transformation benefits.

1.0

INTRODUCTION

1.1

Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution provides that only the full Council may exercise the
functions of approving, adopting or amending the policy framework and budget, and
adopting or changing the Constitution. Staffing matters are also a Council function. The
Cabinet however has a responsibility for advising the Council on such matters. At its
meeting on 8 November 2016, the Cabinet made recommendations to Council in respect
of the above items which may affect the budget and policy framework, Constitution or
comprise staffing issues.

1.2

The remainder of this report details the recommendations of the Cabinet which must be
read in conjunction with the individual reports to Cabinet, copies of which are attached as
appendices.

Page 55

2.0

UK Municipal Bond Agency
(Report submitted to Cabinet – Item 9 and exempt item 12 attached)
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder for Finance and
the Interim S151 Chief Finance Officer which sought approval for the Council to enter into
the borrowing documents prepared by the UK Municipal Bonds Agency (the Agency).
The Agency required that local authorities borrowing from it entered into its
Framework Agreement. The Agreement included an accession document
confirming that the Council had the necessary approvals to sign the Agreement and a joint
and several guarantee to those lending money to the Agency in respect of the borrowing of
all other local authorities from the Agency. Entering into the Framework Agreement
enabled the Council to access funding from the Agency as and when required.
The report set out the background to the Agency, key facets of the Framework
Agreement and the advantages and disadvantages of entering into the Agreement,
including an assessment of the risk that the Council would be called upon under the
guarantee.
Members considered the information provided. It was agreed that the principles of the
report would be discussed and there was therefore no need for the meeting to go into
private session to consider Appendix 1 to the report specifically (exempt item – UK
Municipal Bonds Agency PLC, Documents Package for Local Authorities).
(Other option considered:
 To note the report and not approve the recommendations.
Reasons for decision:
 To increase flexibility and availability of capital financing for future projects.)

3.0

ICT Service and Infrastructure
(Report submitted to Cabinet – Exempt item 13 attached)
Consideration was given to the joint report of the Portfolio Holder Governance and
Customer and the Executive Director Strategy and Governance which sought a decision on
the future approach regarding the ICT service and the development of the associated
technical infrastructure in order to support Council services, (relevant to all Corporate
Priorities).
Councillors discussed issues around these proposals, and considered the various options
that had been proposed. It was agreed that investment in ICT was essential now and in the
future.
DECISION:
a. That the recommendations of the Actica report be noted, for consideration around
future ICT provision; and
b. That subject to the agreement by full Council on the capital budget, the building of a
new technical infrastructure in order to deliver improvements to IT services, security
and disaster recovery, agile working, improved network access and to facilitate greater
freedom to change the ICT delivery model in the future be agreed.

Page 56

(Other options considered:
 Do nothing.
 Implement a new shared ICT infrastructure and move to an insourced, shared
ICT service.
 Implement a new shared ICT infrastructure and move to an insourced service
with separate place based teams.
Reasons for decision:
 To provide a phased approach which would create a shared infrastructure
allowing South Holland’s current IT supply contract to continue, Breckland
Council to realise some of the operational benefits of an internal service and
allowing South Holland the space to consider future strategic direction.)
Background papers:-

None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:

Christine Morgan, Democratic Services Officer
01775 764454
cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision:

No

Exempt Decision:

No

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A

Cabinet Agenda Item 9 – UK Municipal Bond Agency (covering
report)

Confidential appendices attached to this report:
Appendix B

Cabinet Agenda Item 12 - Document package (confidential appendix
to Cabinet Agenda Item 9)
(Please note that this appendix, associated with the UK
Municipal Bond Agency report is not for publication by virtue of
Paragraph 5 (Information in respect of which a claim to legal
professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings)
in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, and
is therefore attached to this agenda as Item 16).

Appendix C

Cabinet Agenda Item 13 – ICT Service and Infrastructure
(Please note that this appendix is not for publication by virtue of
Paragraph 3 (Information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding
that information)) in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972, and is therefore attached to this agenda
as Item 17).

Page 57

This page is intentionally left blank

SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Portfolio Holder Finance and the Interim S151 Chief Finance Officer

To:

Cabinet – 8 November 2016

Author:

Ken Trotter - Interim Chief Accountant

Subject:

UK Municipal Bond Agency

Purpose:

Approval of UK Municipal Bond Agency; Framework Agreement and Joint
and Several Guarantee

Recommendations to Full Council
1)

To approve the Council’s entry into the Framework Agreement and its accompanying
schedules including the joint and several guarantee;

2)

That delegated authority is given to the Executive Director, Commercialisation as Section
151 Officer in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance to agree amendments to the
Framework Agreement as appropriate.

3)

That subject to due diligence and assessment of the legal and financial implications of the
proposal delegated authority be given to the Executive Director, Commercialisation as
Section 151 Officer and the Executive Director, Strategy & Governance as Monitoring
Officer to sign agreed final documents, as appropriate, on behalf of the Council;

1.0

Background

1.1

This report seeks approval for the Council to enter into the borrowing documents prepared
by the UK Municipal Bonds Agency (the Agency).

1.2

The Agency requires that local authorities borrowing from it enter into its Framework
Agreement. The Agreement includes an accession document confirming that the council
has the necessary approvals to sign the Agreement and a joint and several guarantee to
those lending money to the Agency in respect of the borrowing of all other local authorities
from the Agency. Entering into the Framework Agreement enables the Council to access
funding from the Agency as and when required.

1.3

This report sets out the background to the Agency, key facets of the Framework Agreement
and the advantages and disadvantages of entering into the Agreement, including an
assessment of the risk that the Council will be called upon under the guarantee.

1.4

In order to be able to borrow from the Agency the council must accept the terms of the
Framework Agreement and grant a joint and several guarantee. This means that the council
will be guaranteeing all the existing finance obligations of the Agency and any future
obligations which are entered into if the council undertakes borrowing from the Agency.

1.5

Since late 2015 a small group of local authorities, acting as informal working group on
behalf of English local authorities and advised by law firm Allen & Overy, have been
working on the Framework Agreement and Schedules provided by the Agency and their
legal advisors Clifford Chance. Counsel opinion was also sought by the working group and

Page 59

Allen & Overy as to whether local authorities could lawfully enter into the Framework
Agreement and Guarantee and borrow from the Agency.
1.6

Background information is included in the confidential Appendix 1: Documents Package for
Local Authorities (Documents Package) which includes the Framework Agreement and
other supporting documentation. The Documents Package reflects a challenge and due
diligence process carried out by the Agency.

1.7

This report describes the risks of entering into the Framework Agreement and providing the
Guarantee, and the safeguards and protections that are in place to mitigate the Guarantee
from being exercised. It also sets out the legal powers relied upon to enter into these
contracts.
Current Position

1.8

The purpose of the Agency is to deliver cheaper capital finance to local authorities. It will
do so via periodic bond issues, as an aggregator for financing from institutions such as the
European Investment Bank (EIB) and by facilitating greater inter-authority lending. The
Agency is wholly owned by 57 local authorities and the Local Government Association
(LGA). The Council is a shareholder in the Agency with a total investment of £50,000.

1.9

The Council has a number of sources of capital finance available to it, particularly from the
Public Works Loans Board (PWLB). The LGA explored and then, with the support of a
number of local authorities, established the Agency as an alternative to the PWLB.

1.10

An initial bond issue from the Agency is in progress with a finalisation target of before the
end of the calendar year. However no further details have been released since June 2016
and the result of the UK referendum and the reduction in the UK Bank lending base rate
may have an impact on the timing of this issue.
The UK Municipal Bonds Agency
Establishment

1.11

The establishment of the UK Municipal Bonds Agency was led by the LGA following the
announcement in the 2010 Autumn Statement that PWLB rates would increase from 0.15
per cent over Gilts to 1 per cent over Gilts, increasing the cost of new borrowing and
refinancing. This followed the introduction of early repayment penalties by the PWLB in
2007, which have prevented local authorities from restructuring their loan portfolios to
reduce costs while interest rates are low. Although the Government subsequently
introduced the “certainty rate”, which effectively reduced the PWLB’s margin to 0.8 per cent
over Gilts in return for the limited disclosure of an authority’s borrowing plans; the LGA felt
that the rate remained higher than a bonds agency should be able to achieve.

1.12

The LGA also noted that it was easy for UK investors such as pension funds to provide
capital to overseas local authorities through the London capital markets, but not so to UK
local authorities.

1.13

The LGA published a revised business case in March 2014 that set out how a bonds
agency would issue bonds on behalf of local authorities in an efficient and cost effective
manner and at lower rates than the PWLB. It identified that the regulatory environment
meant that the PWLB had a de facto monopoly on providing simple loans to local
authorities:

Page 60

1.14



For regulatory purposes a bank must set aside capital when lending to local
authorities – unlike when lending to the Government – and therefore it is difficult for
banks to compete with the PWLB on rates and make money other than by offering
structured lending products.



Investors in bonds value liquidity and benchmark sized issues (£250 million), which
makes it difficult for most local authorities to access the bond markets, particularly
as one-off bond issues can be costly.



Supranational agencies such as the EIB would typically lend only for large projects,
typically £150 million or £250 million depending on the project, thereby excluding
most local authorities.

The company was established in June 2014 and the agency will act as an intermediary,
borrowing the money and on-lending it to local authorities on a matched basis. The aim is to
deliver cheaper capital finance to local authorities through periodic bond issues, as an
aggregator for loans from other bodies such as the EIB, and facilitating longer term interauthority lending via the Agency.
Client Base

1.15

The Agency will only lend to UK local authorities who can give a joint and several
guarantee. This is currently limited to 353 principal English local authorities that have the
general power of competence under section 1(1) of the Localism Act 2011. The Department
for Communities and Local Government specifically intended that local authorities should
be able to give guarantees using the power in its regulatory impact assessment.

1.16

The ability to give joint and several guarantees may in due course be extended to other
local authorities e.g. combined, Welsh or Scottish authorities. In the event that this occurs,
those authorities will be eligible to borrow from the Agency.

1.17

The Agency would prefer all borrowers to become shareholders. This ensures a strong
alignment of interest between borrowers and shareholders, and is viewed positively by
ratings agencies and the capital markets. Accordingly, the Agency will charge a higher
interest rate to borrowers that are not shareholders, albeit one which remains competitive.
Loan Pricing

1.18

The Agency will operate a transparent pricing structure. It will charge local authorities the
interest the Agency pays to obtain the funds it on-lends, plus any transaction costs up to a
maximum of 0.5 per cent of the amount borrowed, plus a margin to cover its costs. This
margin is currently set at:


0.10 per cent for shareholders; and



0.15 per cent for non-shareholders.

1.19

The Agency may adjust these margins for new borrowing transactions at its discretion, but
will not increase them. It is expected that these margins will reduce once the Agency is
profitable.

1.20

Transactions costs include the Agency’s credit rating agency fees, bank syndicate fees and
legal costs. The Council has the option to amortise these over the life of the loan or to
expense them.

Page 61

1.21

The Agency will not require local authorities to borrow at a rate that is higher than the
PWLB. Over time, the rates offered by the Agency may improve as its bonds programme
develops and it is able to borrow from institutions such as the EIB.
Early Repayment (Prepayment)

1.22

The Agency will pass on the cost of early repayment by a local authority (usually referred to
as prepayment in financial services) to that local authority. However, the Agency will not
profit from the transaction and will assist any local authority seeking early repayment to find
the cheapest solution.

1.23

Prepayment rights will track through between the loans to local authorities and the Agency’s
financing. For bond issues, voluntary prepayment is calculated in a similar way to the
PWLB’s early redemption penalties, although one option available to local authorities will be
to buy back part of the bond.
Governance

1.24

The Agency is a public limited company and as such is directed by its Board; comprising of
a chairman, vice chairman, 4 non-executives and a senior independent director; assisted by
an executive management team of 5.

1.25

The Board has the following sub-committees, chaired by independent non-executives:

1.26



Risk, Compliance and Audit Committee; and



Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

In addition, the Agency is aiming to establish a Local Authority Advisory Board, comprising
local authority finance officers, to facilitate two-way communication between the Agency
and its borrowers.
Credit Process

1.27

Prior to approving any loans, the Agency will carry out a credit assessment of each
potential borrower.

1.28

The Agency has developed a proprietary credit scoring model based on similar
methodologies to the main credit rating agencies. In order to access funding from the
Agency, a local authority will need to be able to achieve a “single A” credit rating on a
standalone basis; rating agencies typically “notch up” a local authority to account for implied
Government support.

1.29

In addition to credit scoring, the Agency will ensure appropriate diversification of its lending
portfolio, through the contractual concentration limits agreed in the Framework Agreement.

2.0

Options

2.1

Note the report and approve the recommendations

2.2

Note the report and do not approve the recommendations

3.0

Reasons for recommendation(s)

3.1

To increase flexibility and availability of capital financing for future projects

Page 62

4.0

Expected Benefits

4.1

Increased competition to ensure the Council has the lowest possible borrowing costs from
approved lenders in line with the treasury management strategy

5.0

Implications

5.1

Constitution & Legal

5.1.1

The Council has the power to enter into the Framework Agreement under Section 1 of the
Localism Act 2011 – the general power of competence. Borrowing under the Framework
Agreement will be under Section 1 of the Local Government Act 2003 – the power to
borrow.
The Framework Agreement and the Joint and Several Guarantee

5.1.2

The Framework Agreement as set out in Appendix 1, Section 3 comprises:


The Framework Agreement itself, which is primarily designed to prevent a call on
the joint and several guarantee and lays out how the Agency will interact with local
authorities.



Schedule 1: Form of Authority Accession Deed, which local authorities sign to
commit them to the Framework Agreement.



Schedule 2: Form of Guarantee, which is the joint and several guarantee.



Schedule 3: Loan Standard Terms, which is the loan agreement that covers any
borrowing by an authority.



Schedule 4: Form of Loan Confirmation, which supplements the Loan Standard
Terms and confirms details of a loan such as principal, maturity, interest rate and
etc. It is signed by the Agency and a borrower.

Need for the Joint and Several Guarantee
5.1.3

The LGA’s revised business case highlighted the need for borrowing authorities to sign a
joint and several guarantee:


The joint and several guarantee allows the Agency to issue bonds without having to
prepare a full prospectus for each bond issue, pursuant EU’s “Prospective Directive”
(Article 1(2)(d) of Directive 2003/71/EC), thereby reducing costs and complexity.



The UK Listing Authority’s “listing rules” that govern whether financial instruments
can be listed on a UK stock exchange would not permit bonds issued by an agency
to be listed on the London Stock Exchange for some years without a joint and
several guarantee, meaning the bonds would need to be listed elsewhere such as
the Channel Islands or Luxembourg.



If, instead of a joint and several guarantee, investors had recourse to an agency’s
on-lending arrangements, every tranche of financing would require a separate credit
rating and investors to assess the participating authorities, which would materially
impact an agency’s ability to reduce costs and deter a number of potential investors

Page 63

and lenders from lending money to the agency. The joint and several guarantee
draws on the strength of the local government sector and is simple for investors to
understand.
Nature of the Joint and Several Guarantee
5.1.4

The joint and several guarantee is a schedule to the Framework Agreement (Appendix 1,
Section 3, Schedule 2) and is direct, unconditional, irrevocable and not separately
administered:
“2.1.1 guarantees to each Beneficiary each and every obligation and liability the Company
may now or hereafter have to such Beneficiary (whether solely or jointly with one or more
persons and whether as principal or as surety or in some other capacity) in respect of the
Guaranteed Liabilities and promises to pay to each Beneficiary from time to time on
demand the unpaid balance of every sum (of principal, interest or otherwise) now or
hereafter owing, due or payable (following the expiry of any grace period provided for) by
the Company to any such Beneficiary in respect of any such Guaranteed Liability”
And
“2.1.2 agrees as a primary obligation to indemnify each Beneficiary from time to time on
demand from and against any loss incurred by such Beneficiary as a result of any such
Guaranteed Liability being or becoming void, voidable, unenforceable or ineffective as
against the Company for any reason whatsoever, whether or not known to such
Beneficiary, the amount of such loss being the amount which such Beneficiary would
otherwise have been entitled to recover from the Company.”

5.1.5

In practice this means that all borrowers are collectively and individually guaranteeing the
lenders to the Agency against a default by a local authority.

5.1.6

The Council can withdraw from the joint and several guarantee by giving notice and
repaying its loans to the Agency. However, the irrevocable nature of the guarantee
means that the Council will continue to guarantee the Agency’s borrowings at the date of
withdrawal until those borrowings mature. This prevents moral hazard i.e. a local
authority borrowing from the Agency to achieve a cheaper borrowing rate, but walking
away from the obligations. Withdrawal does mean that the Council will not be
guaranteeing future borrowing by the Agency.
Preventing a Call on the Guarantee

5.1.7

The Framework Agreement mitigates against a possible call on the joint and several
guarantee by minimising the risk of default by a local authority, limiting the possible impact
of a default and containing a default before the Agency’s ability to make payments is
threatened.

5.1.8

The Framework Agreement imposes obligations on the Agency that are designed to
reduce the possibility of default by a borrower:


The Agency must credit assess each borrower and exclude those that do not
achieve at least the equivalent of a strong investment grade rating equivalent to an
“A” rating from the established credit rating agencies such as Moody’s.



“Concentration limits” ensure that the Agency will maintain a diverse loan book over
time that limits the proportion of the Agency’s loan book that can be lent to a single
or small group of authorities. (Appendix 1, Section 3, Paragraph 5.2)

Page 64



Credit lines are available to the Agency that it must utilise in the event of a local
authority missing a payment or defaulting, before it has recourse to other borrowers.

5.1.9

The Framework Agreement establishes a contributions mechanism that requires
borrowers to lend the Agency funds to cover its obligations in the event of a default by a
local authority. The contributions are calculated in proportion to an authority’s share of the
performing loan book. The loans are interest bearing and will be repaid once the Agency
has recovered the sums owed to it by the defaulting authority, which it is required to do by
the Framework Agreement. If the Council has no outstanding borrowings via the Agency,
it will not be called upon to make contributions under the Framework Agreement.

5.1.10

The payment schedules set out in the Framework Agreement are designed to ensure
timely payments by local authorities so that error or late payment by a borrower does not
risk a call for contributions or under the guarantee.

5.1.11

The Framework Agreement prevents a borrower from taking action against a defaulting
authority so that a single authority cannot jeopardise the structure of the Agency and / or
act against the interests of other borrowers.

5.1.12

Acting on behalf of prospective borrowers, a small group of authorities appointed lawyers,
Allen & Overy, to review and advise upon the documentation. Allen & Overy instructed
counsel to obtain senior opinion on vires and reasonableness. The advice and opinion
resulted in a small number of changes to the Agency’s documentation.

5.1.13

Counsel raised three key considerations that a local authority must take into account
when making a decision to enter into the Framework Agreement:


its specific financial position;



whether or not the council is “reasonably financially robust” i.e. the council can meet
the potential demands that the Framework Agreement places upon it; and



whether it is to the authority’s advantage to enter into the Framework Agreement
taking into account the advantages and disadvantages of doing so.

5.1.14

Taken together, these three considerations help address a key requirement of the
Wednesbury principles that the Council exercises its powers in a reasonable manner.

5.1.15

Allen & Overy also engaged Jonathan Swift QC to provide opinion on, amongst other
things, whether:

5.1.16



entry into the Framework agreement, execution of the Guarantee, entry into
borrowing transactions under the Framework Agreement and the provision of
contribution loans would all be within the general power of competence under the
Localism Act 2011; and



a local authority that decides to enter into the Framework Agreement and the
Guarantee on the basis of the Document Package (Appendix 1) would be acting in
accordance with the requirement of Wednesbury reasonableness.

His main conclusions were:

Page 65



Local authorities do have the power, in principle, to enter into the arrangement
envisaged by the Framework Agreement; and



whilst it would, in principle, be lawful for a reasonably financially robust local
authority to enter into the commitments entailed in the Framework Agreement, the
final assessment of whether or not it would be reasonable use of the in principle
power must be made taking into account the specific financial position of each local
authority, whether it is financially robust and the balance of the advantages and
disadvantages of doing so.

5.1.17

Wider considerations, such as establishing the independence of the sector, whether they
have merit or not, should not have a bearing on the Council’s assessment of the
advantages and disadvantages of entering into the Framework Agreement.

5.1.18

Jonathan Swift QC’s opinion was procured independently of the Agency.

5.1.19

Although the Agency intends that the Framework Agreement is permanent, there may be
a need to either amend the Framework Agreement or if the Council wishes, set aside
provisions for a period of time without amending the contributions arrangements or joint
and several guarantee.

5.2

Contracts

5.2.1

The signing of the framework agreement will enter the council into a binding contract with
the Agency which will include a joint and several guarantee.

5.3

Financial

5.3.1

Although the Council has no immediate need to borrow externally, entering into the
Framework Agreement enables the Council to access funding from the Agency if and
when required.

5.3.2

In accordance with the Treasury Management Strategy, use of the Agency for borrowing
will be considered on a case by case basis along with other options, such as borrowing
from the Public Works Loans Board or from other Local Authorities. Availability of funds,
costs of borrowing and loan conditions will all be examined with an overall assessment
being carried out as stipulated in the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local
Authorities.

5.3.3

UK local authorities are heavily supervised and subject to tight statutory control that
reduces the probability that a local authority will default on its financial obligations.
Furthermore, the Agency will undertake credit assessments of local authorities and limit its
exposure to authorities to reduce credit risk. In the event that a local authority needs to
refinance its borrowings from the Agency, the PWLB is available to all local authorities as
lender of last resort provided that the borrowing from the PWLB is not unlawful.

5.3.4

No UK local authority has ever defaulted on one of its primary debt obligations and the
risk of a default is considered to be low which in turn alleviates the risk of entering into the
Framework Agreement and guarantee.

5.3.5

If a local authority does default, the Agency has liquidity facilities available to it so that it
can meet the interest payments due on a bond and covers a limited default on a principal
repayment by a local authority; the provisions of the Framework Agreement will be used if
these facilities are exhausted. The Council has adequate reserves and in the unlikely

Page 66

event of a call for contributions under the Framework Agreement or payment under joint
and several guarantee, has access to PWLB funds at 48 hours’ notice if required.
5.3.6

The risks associated with the joint and several guarantee are mitigated by the contribution
arrangements. Therefore, from a practical perspective, the real risk to the Council is the
requirement to make contributions in the event of a default by another borrower and this
exposure is proportional because it is calculated by reference to the amount borrowed by
the Council as a proportion of all non-defaulting loans made by the Agency. If the Council
has never had any borrowings via the Agency, it will not be called upon under the
Framework Agreement.

5.3.7

In the unlikely event that the guarantee is called upon, it is also unlikely that bond holders
or other providers of finance to the Agency will pursue a single Council for payment
because the best outcome for lenders is likely to be achieved by pursuing all the
guarantors because this maximises the potential revenues available to repay them.

5.3.8

Section 13 of the Local Government Act secures all debts of a local authority on its
revenues and therefore it is highly likely that the Agency will be able to recover amounts
owed to it by a defaulting authority. In turn, this will enable the Agency to repay sums lent
to it under the Framework Agreement or paid out by the Council under the guarantee.

5.3.9

The risk that the Council suffers a loss under the Framework Agreement and the joint and
several guarantee is therefore a combination of the low risk of a default by a local
authority and the low risk that if a local authority does default, local authorities cannot
recover sums owed to them.

5.3.10

In return for accepting this risk, the Council would expect to receive access to more
diverse and potentially cheaper sources of capital finance via the Agency.

5.3.11

Developments in respect of lending capability and the prospect of potentially lower
borrowing rates will continue to be monitored as part of the Treasury Management
function.

5.3.12

Loans with the PWLB in respect of the Housing Revenue Account self-financing have
been raised with the Agency and an interest in potential future products that could allow
repayment with limited or nil penalty have been registered.

5.3.13

The result of the UK referendum has no immediate effect on the arrangements with the
Agency but clearly developments on the terms of the agreement to leave the European
Union will need to be carefully monitored and managed as activity progresses.
References to EU directives in the documents continue to apply during the negotiation
period.

5.3.14

The EIB is the European Union's bank owned by and representing the interests of the
European Union Member States. It works closely with other EU institutions to implement
EU policy.

5.3.15

The EIB is also active outside the European Union and in the European Free Trade
Association countries it has been lending since 1994 after a loan facility was established
to further the aims of the EU in those countries. Projects in which the EIB is involved in the
EFTA states are financed from the Bank’s own resources. They have to meet the same
eligibility criteria and follow the same procedures as those within the European Union.

Page 67

Accounting for the Guarantee
5.3.16

The Agency commissioned accounting advice from Grant Thornton setting out the local
authority accounting requirements for borrowing via the Agency including the joint and
several guarantee, as set out in Appendix 1, Section 6.

5.3.17

Although the Council is unable to rely on this advice and must procure additional advice if
it is uncertain regarding the accounting requirements, Grant Thornton’s advice does not
raise any concerns at this time. For example, if the Council judges the risk of a call under
the joint and several guarantee to be zero, then accounting requirements of entering into
the Framework Agreement are minimal and mostly confined to disclosures in the event
that the Council borrows from the Agency.

5.3.18

The Council’s revenue budget and medium term financial strategy demonstrate and set
out the financial pressures the Council is under, particularly in light of the funding cuts and
uncertainties that changes to the system of local government finance and business rates
may bring. Nonetheless, the Council is required to balance its budget and is subject to
tight statutory controls and supervision. As highlighted elsewhere in this report, it is
therefore extremely unlikely that the Council will find itself in the position that it is unable to
meet the requirements of the Framework Agreement and joint and several guarantee e.g.
that it makes contributions if asked.

5.3.19

Loans made to the Agency under the Framework Agreement as part of the contribution
arrangements could constitute capital expenditure because loans to third parties are
defined as such under the (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003
(as amended). Given that the Agency is likely to recover the amounts owed to it by a
defaulting authority and that the contributions are in themselves loans, the impact on the
revenue budget it likely to be negligible if the Council is required to make a contribution or
called upon under the joint and several guarantee.

5.3.20

Paragraph 5.4.10 below identifies that the joint and several guarantee will remain in force
after borrowing has been repaid and the guarantee terminated. Borrowing by the Agency
is limited to a maximum repayment term of 50 years and this would be the maximum time
the guarantee would continue to apply to liabilities entered into by the Agency while the
Guarantee from the council was in place.

5.3.21

Concentration limits will be examined in detail when the framework agreement is
negotiated in order to limit exposure to major borrowing from upper tier authorities.

5.4

Risk Management
Risk of Default by an Authority

5.4.1

The risk of a default by a local authority is deemed to be low: no principal local authority
has ever defaulted on a loan. The National Audit Office in its Financial Sustainability of
Local Authorities report of November 2014 observed:
“A legal framework at the core of the local government accountability system
effectively prevents local authorities becoming insolvent. Local authorities cannot borrow
to finance revenue expenditure or run deficits.”

5.4.2

The statutory and prudential framework under which local authorities operate is extremely
strong and designed to prevent local authorities from over-reaching themselves and
becoming insolvent. Key aspects of the framework include:

Page 68



Local authorities are prevented from borrowing to fund services by the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, which sets out how budgets and the Council Tax
must be calculated, particularly Section 31A, 32 and 42A of the Act. These
provisions require a budget to be balanced on a cash basis without the use of
borrowing.



Local authorities must comply with the prudential framework established by Part 1 of
the Local Government Act 2003 and related regulations, including the Prudential
Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities published by CIPFA.



Section 151 Officers have varied powers and responsibilities that result in prudent
financial management. For example, if an authority cannot pay its bills at it falls due,
he or she must submit a Section 114 report to the Executive / Council, which must
be acted upon. A Section 151 officer must also report on the adequacy of reserves
and robustness of budget estimate under Section 25 of the Local Government Act
2003 and action be taken by the Council to remedy an adverse report.



A local authority must make a Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) to repay debt
under the local authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations
2003, issued by the Secretary of State under Sections 21 of the Local Government
Act 2003 (as amended). This means that a local authority sets aside cash via its
revenue budget, sufficient to ensure it can repay its debt.

5.4.3

The Agency’s credit assessments, risk management processes and the concentration
limits should reduce the possibility that a local authority borrowing from the Agency is
likely to default.

5.4.4

Local authorities have access to the PWLB as lender of last resort and therefore can
refinance any borrowings from the Agency by the PWLB if it cannot repay its debt to the
Agency by other means.

5.4.5

Historically, the Government has intervened when a local authority finds itself in difficult or
the Government deems a local authority to be incapable of managing itself effectively.

5.4.6

For the Council to be called upon to make contributions under the Framework Agreement,
let alone be called upon under the joint and several guarantee, all the above controls and
protections must fail. This has been summarised by the Agency in its presentations as set
out in figure 1 below:
MULTI-LAYERED PROTECTION
All controls and means of support have to fail for a call on the guarantee:

Local Authority Statutory Budgetary
Controls
Local Authority Prudential Code and
Capital Controls
Agency’s Credit Process and
Controls
PWLB
Government
Intervention
Framework
Agreement
J&SG
4

Page 69

Risk of Not Recovering Contributions or Payments under the Joint and Several
Guarantee
5.4.7

5.4.8

The Local Government Act 2003 provides several key protections to lenders that greatly
reduce the possibility that the Agency and therefore the Council would be unable to
recover sums owed to it if it is required to make a contribution or pay out under the joint
and several guarantee:


Section 6 provides that a lender is not required to ensure that a local authority has
the power to borrow and is not “prejudiced” in the absence of such a power. This
prevents a local authority claiming an act was “ultra vires” to side step its
obligations.



Section 13 provides that all debts rank pari passu i.e. have equal status under the
law and thus a creditor cannot be disadvantaged by later subordination of that debt
by a local authority.



Section 13 also secures all debts of an authority on its revenues, which is the
strongest possible security for a loan as the bulk of a local authority’s revenues are
either raised under statutory powers or allocated by the Government.



Section 13 also provides for a receiver to be appointed by the High Court on
application if principal and / or interest greater than £10,000 is outstanding for 60
days.

The Framework Agreement requires that the Agency must pursue any defaulting authority
to the extent that if it does not do so promptly, borrowers can force it to do so.
Furthermore, the Framework Agreement provides for a strict application of the proceeds
of any debt recovered by the Agency from a defaulting authority.
Risks and Disadvantages of Entering Into the Framework Agreement

5.4.9

Exposure to the contribution arrangements and the joint and several guarantee means
that entering into the Framework Agreement and borrowing via the Agency is different in
nature to borrowing from the Public Works Loan Board, under a bilateral loan facility or
through a bond issue in the capital markets.

5.4.10

There are inherent risks associated with the proposed structure, not least the joint and
several nature of the guarantee. These are:

5.4.11



The risk that the Council’s guarantee may be called independently of any other
Guarantee and for the full amount owing by the Agency under the financing
document that is covered by the guarantee (and, therefore, such participating local
authority is potentially liable to pay out amounts to the MBA that exceed the
amounts borrowed).



Even if the Council has terminated its Guarantee, it will continue to guarantee the
“Guaranteed Liabilities” entered into by the Agency before the termination date. The
effect of this is that the Council’s liability under its Guarantee may potentially
continue in existence for many years after termination.

However, the risks associated with the joint and several guarantee are mitigated by the
contribution arrangements. The Framework Agreement is such that the Council’s
exposure, from a practical perspective, is the requirement to make contributions in the

Page 70

event of a default by another borrower and this exposure is proportional because it is
calculated by reference to the amount borrowed by the Council as a proportion of all nondefaulting loans made by the Agency.
5.4.12

The risk of a default by a local authority is considered to be low. The ability of the Agency
to recover sums owed to it in the event of a default is set out elsewhere in this report.

5.4.13

There is a risk that the Agency does not observe its obligations under the Framework
Agreement, but the Council is entitled to expect that the Agency will operate in
accordance with its obligations under the Framework Agreement when considering
whether or not to enter into the Framework Agreement. The LGA and local authorities
control the Agency via their shareholdings so could intervene if the Agency did not abide
by the Framework Agreement.

5.4.14

The prime advantage to the Council is the prospect of lower borrowing costs and the
possibility to obtain types of loans that are not available from the PWLB. Cheaper capital
finance could reduce pressure on the Council’s finances. This potential advantage may
offset the low risk that a local authority defaults and the Agency is unable to recover the
debts owed to it in order to repay the Council any contributions it is required to make.

5.4.15

The Framework Agreement only comes into effect if the Council does borrow from the
Agency. If the Council does not borrow, there is no risk to the Council arising from the
contribution arrangements or joint and several guarantee. The Council is not obligated to
borrow via the Agency and even if it chooses to legally commit to borrowing via a bond
issue, it will not be required to take a loan that is not cheaper than the PWLB, so the bond
will not be issued. Therefore, the financial risk to the Council of the Agency either failing
to deliver a saving or the Council not borrowing having signed the Framework Agreement
is eliminated.

6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

All wards are affected by financial matters

7.0

ACRONYMS

7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4
7.5
7.6
7.7
7.8

Agency – The UK Municipal Bonds Agency
LGA - Local Government Association
PWLB – Public Works Loan Board
EFTA - European Free Trade Association
CIPFA – Chartered institute of Public Finance Accountancy
MRA - Minimum Revenue Provision
EIB – European Investment Bank
EU – European Union

Background papers:- Treasury Management Policy
Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post:
Telephone Number:
Email:
Key Decision:

Suzanne Jones - Interim S151 Chief Finance Officer
Telephone Number: 01775 761161
suzanne.jones@breckland-sholland.gov.uk or alternatively
ktrotter@sholland.gov.uk (Interim Chief Accountant)
No

Page 71

Confidential appendix attached to this report:
Appendix 1 – Documents Package
(Please note that the appendix associated with this report is not for publication by virtue of
Paragraph 5 (Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings) in Part 1 of Schedule 12a of the Local Government Act
1972, and is therefore attached to this agenda as Item 12)

Page 72

KEY DECISION PLAN

Issued – 29 November 2016

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision
is likely to be made, to:
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764626 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk
The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months

Page 73

The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period from the date of publication of
any decision.
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.”

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

1

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION

Agenda Item 10.

Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies)

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

Portfolio Holder
for Housing and
Health

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS
SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

Portfolio Holder for
Housing.

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Housing Landlord
Manager Between 1 Jan
2017 and 31 Jan 2017

Meetings and discussions.
CSU Building
Materials
Contract

Page 74

Portfolio Holder
for Housing and
Health

To award a contract.

Portfolio Holder for
Housing.

Housing Landlord
Manager Between 1 Dec
2016 and 31 Dec 2016

Meetings and discussions.
CSU Glazing
Replacements
Contract
Portfolio Holder
for Place
Update on the
Garden Waste
Collection Pilot

To update Councillors on the Garden
Waste Pilot, and set out options for the
future.

Portfolio Holder for Place
and Executive Director
Place
Meetings and
correspondence

2

Update on the
Garden Waste
Collection Pilot

Cabinet 28 Mar 2017

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

Portfolio Holder
for Housing and
Health

To award new sewerage maintenance
contract for the housing stock.

Page 75

New sewerage
maintenance
contract for
council housing
stock
Portfolio Holder
for Housing and
Health

Portfolio Holder for
Housing Landlord,
Housing Manager.

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS
SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION
Housing Landlord
Manager Between 1 Dec
2016 and 31 Dec 2016

Informal meetings and
discussions.

To award a works contract. Value
£1.24m to March 2018.

Portfolio Holder for
Housing Landlord,
Housing Manager.
Meetings and discussions.

Kitchen and
Bathroom
Refurbishment

3

Housing Landlord
Manager
Between 11 Jan 2017 and
11 Feb 2017

PORTFOLIO
HOLDER /
SUBJECT

PURPOSE OF DECISION

CONSULTEES AND
METHOD OF
CONSULTATION

SUPPORTING
DOCUMENTS

LIKELY DATE OF
DECISION AND WHO
WILL MAKE DECISION

*Cabinet Membership

Page 76

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader)
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council)
Councillor M G Chandler (Deputy Leader)
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor P E Coupland (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor S Slade (Portfolio Holder)
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder)

If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact:
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE
Telephone: 01775 764626 Fax: 01775 711253 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk

4

Agenda Item 11.
SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
Report of:

Portfolio Holder for Place and Head of Paid Service

To:

Full Council

(Author:

Rob Walker, Executive Director of Place

Subject:

Staffing Structure – Emergency Planning and Property Services

Purpose:

To consider proposed changes to the staffing structure.

Recommendation(s):
1)

That the establishment is increased and 0.6 FTE Emergency Planning Officer (Grade F) and
1 FTE Strategic Property Officer posts are created (Grade I).

2)

That the post of Leisure Manager is deleted from the establishment.

1.0

BACKGROUND

1.1

Following consideration of a report by the Head of Paid Service at Full Council on 27 July
2016, it was resolved that: a) The post of Executive Manager – Income & Prosperity be deleted from the
establishment;
b) The budget associated with this post be reinvested elsewhere in the staffing
establishment, and focussed around two areas – emergency planning and property
management;
c) The Head of the Paid Service bring forward proposals, in due course, for additional
staffing resources in another area or areas of the staffing structure.

1.2

Full current year salary and on-costs of the Executive Manager – Income & Prosperity post
were £76,880. These costs were shared 60:40 between Breckland and South Holland. As a
result, the budget allocated to this post in South Holland was £30,740. This is the allocation
available for reinvestment.

1.3

This report recommends that this budget saving is reinvested in the Emergency Planning
and Property Services functions. Both functions will sit within the Place portfolio/directorate.
Emergency Planning

1.4

Currently, South Holland District Council’s Emergency Planning service is provided by
Lincolnshire County Council through a Service Level Agreement. The annual cost of this
agreement is £11,500 per annum. It is proposed that the arrangement with Lincolnshire
County Council is ceased on 31 March 2017 and that Emergency Planning is resourced
directly by the Council after this point.

1.5

It is proposed that an Emergency Planning Officer post is created. It is further being
proposed that an equivalent post is created at Breckland Council (and is going through their
decision making process) and whilst the two posts will not be shared there will be shared
resilience and mutual aid available across the two authorities.

Page 77

1.6

Increasingly South Holland has to respond to varied emergency situations, for example:
flash flooding, dangerous structures, policing incidents and accidents/emergencies involving
council staff and/or assets. Whilst the council has managed all such recent incidents
effectively the capacity to do so has been hard-pressed and it has impacted – albeit
temporarily – on delivery across the council where officers have been redeployed.

1.7

In creating this post the emergency planning function will fall under the council’s direct
control and provide additional support to our GOLD (strategic) and SILVER (tactical) officers
that work across both South Holland and Breckland.

1.8

Whilst the SLA with Lincolnshire County Council will cease under this proposal we will
continue to support the work of the Lincolnshire Resilience Forum and all our partner
agencies to deal with emergencies that happen within our district but also across the
county.

1.9

The Civil Contingencies Act 2004, and accompanying non-legislative measures, delivers a
single framework for civil protection in the UK. Part 1 of the Act establishes a clear set of
roles and responsibilities for those involved in emergency preparation and response at the
local level. Local authorities are listed as Category 1 responders and are at the core of the
response to most emergencies. They are required to:








assess the risk of emergencies occurring and use this to inform
contingency planning;
put in place emergency plans;
put in place business continuity management arrangements;
put in place arrangements to make information available to the public
about civil protection matters and maintain arrangements to warn,
inform and advise the public in the event of an emergency;
share information with other local responders to enhance coordination;
co-operate with other local responders to enhance co-ordination and
efficiency;
provide advice and assistance to businesses and voluntary
organizations about business continuity management.

Property Services
1.10

South Holland District Council is facing the challenge of sustaining front line services with
reduced funding. It is now more important than ever that the Council ensures its asset and
property base is used effectively to deliver the income and resources needed to support the
services it provides. Property assets are inextricably linked to the delivery of the vision and
priorities of the Council and the way that we manage our land and property assets has a
direct impact on the quality of services delivered to the public.

1.11

Because the Council’s vision and priorities are specific to meeting the needs and
requirement of the community it serves, it means that the strategy for the effective and
efficient use of the Council’s assets is unique. There is also no prescribed process for how
to use a local authority asset base that can easily be transferred from one authority to
another given the unique nature of the priorities for each authority. Against this background
it is relevant for the Council to create a resource that can deliver the needed output from its
property asset base.

Page 78

1.12

Since the restructure in mid-2015 and whilst the Council has successfully reviewed or
moved forward a number of property related projects (Willow Court, Gore Lane, Moulton
Park, temporary additional depot site) there has been no in-house or employed lead for
strategic property management and there are a number of strategic related projects that
need attention where the skills or resources are not available to do so.

1.13

The Council is now looking at a multi-strand approach to its asset management function and
part of that approach is the creation of a Strategic Property Officer post that can drive
forward this strategy and implement and deliver a number of projects will assist several
different areas of the Council.

2.0

OPTIONS

2.1

Do nothing. This option is not recommended. Increasingly, the council has to manage
emergency situations and there is need for additional capacity to resource this activity
effectively. Furthermore, the Council needs a new resource to strategically manage its
property portfolio and generate significant financial and organisational benefits for the
Council.

2.2

Increase the establishment and create a 0.6 FTE Emergency Planning Officer (Grade F)
post. This option will increase resilience, effectiveness and control in this functional area.
A Strategic Property Officer (Grade I) post is required to drive forward strategy and
implement and deliver projects across the Council and improve its overall financial position.
This option is recommended.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S)

3.1

To ensure that South Holland District Council is well resourced to prepare for and manage
Emergency Planning and Business Continuity situations effectively with less impact on core
council services and delivery.

3.2

To ensure that South Holland District Council is making best use of its property portfolio to
deliver the strategic objectives of the Council and generate funds for reinvestment in core
council services.

4.0

EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1

Reinvestment of underutilised budget in new areas of the staffing structure that are faced
with increasing demand.

5.0

IMPLICATIONS

5.1

Carbon Footprint / Environmental Issues

5.1.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.2

Constitution & Legal

5.2.1 Statutory matters dealt with in the body of the report. Staffing matters are a non-executive
function. Permanent changes to the staffing structure are a matter for Full Council to
determine.

Page 79

5.3

Contracts

5.3.1

The Service Level Agreement with Lincolnshire County Council will be ceased with affect
from 31 March 2017. This Agreement has an annual cost of £11,500 and has a notice
period of 3 months.

5.4

Corporate Priorities

5.4.1

By focussing resources where they are most needed, we will support the corporate
objective of “To provide the right services, at the right time and in the right way”.

5.5

Crime and Disorder

5.5.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.6

Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

5.6.1

The Council is subject the public sector equality duty, the Human Rights Act 1998 and
various duties of non-discrimination in employment law. These matters are considered as
part of all staffing reviews.

5.7

Financial

5.7.1

Total estimated employee costs of £68,000, emergency planning officer post, £18,000
(0.6fte) and the Strategic Property Officer post (1 FTE), £50,000 are to be financed in the
2017/18 Budget from other budget savings as identified below.

5.7.2

Existing budget of £30,740 for the Executive Manager - Income & Prosperity post is to be
released in line with the council decision 27 July 2016.

5.7.3

The SLA for emergency planning with LCC is subject to a 3 month notice of termination and
subject this action being carried out in 2016 a budget of £11,500 can be released in
2017/18

5.7.4

The Leisure Manager post in the Community Services Team is currently vacant and it is
proposed that this is deleted from the establishment. Employee costs of £26,500 will be
released from the 2017/18 Budget if the recommendation is approved. The 1Life Leisure
contract will continue to be managed by the Community Services team utilising existing
management resource.

5.7.5

Savings from these changes in 2016/17 is approximately £45,740 which has been assigned
to interim & agency costs in year of approximately £30,000 with the remainder being held in
the event that the strategic property officer post is filled prior to the 31 March 2017.

5.8

Health & Wellbeing

5.8.1

It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.

5.9

Risk Management

5.9.1

The proposed changes to the staffing structure would enhance the ability of the Council to
respond in emergency planning and business continuity situations and would mitigate the
risk and impact of any such situations on the core operational delivery and performance of
the council.

Page 80

5.10

Safeguarding

5.10.1 It is the opinion of the Report Author that there are no implications.
5.11

Staffing

5.11.1 Staffing matters are dealt with in the main body of the report.
5.12

Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.12.1 Lincolnshire County Council will be an affected stakeholder due to the ceasing of the SLA.
A full recruitment process will be run and will be completed within three months.
6.0

WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1

All Wards.

Background papers:Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Rob Walker, Executive Director of Place
Telephone Number: 07867 988826
Email: Robert.walker@breckland-sholland.gov.uk
Key Decision:

Yes / No

Exempt Decision:

Yes / No

This report refers to a Discretionary Service but a function with statutory powers and
duties.

Page 81

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 15.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 83

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 16.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 89

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 17.

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 275

This page is intentionally left blank

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 285

This page is intentionally left blank

